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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG
KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware
of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and
careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more
suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that
there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the
“Directors”) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and its subsidiary (“the Group”). The directors,
having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement in this report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in
this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are founded on bases and assumptions that
are fair and reasonable.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

ER®E

As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors (the
“Board”), | am pleased to report the activities of Jilin Province Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2013.

During the year under review, the Group has spent significant efforts
on further promoting its core products, namely Hai Kun Shen Xi
capsule (BEEB=ZB3) and Compound Huonaoshu capsule (1877
SEFSATIZEE). As a result, the total turnover of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2013 was RMB457,746,000, representing
a sharp increase of 30% as compared with RMB353,247,000 for
the previous year. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company increased to RMB79,274,000 from RMB58,754,000 last
year. For the year ended 31 December 2013, basic earnings per share
increased to RMB14.15 cents from RMB10.49 cents last year.

The notable achievements in 2013 were the results of the persistent
effort of all levels of the staff in the past year. In fact, the Board
of Directors has already expressed its optimistic view for 2013’s
profitability in the 2012 annual report. As such, the Board would like to
share its view on the Company’s competitive edges with shareholders
as such edges would allow the Company to achieve further success in
the coming years.

Firstly, we made efforts in the sales and marketing of our dominant
products, namely Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (& B =B %) and
Compound Huonaoshu capsule (187 &S EF B ). Against the
backdrop that the State had increased investment in public health
care, regional sales of our dominant products which were included
into the provincial catalogues further increased. This helped us to
scale new heights in our results with the accelerated development of
the untapped markets.

Besides, we proactively organised and participated in annual activities
held under the Academic Institute of Nephrology (B/RZ2 i1 E ) at
the state level, while grasping opportunities in participating the annual
activities held under the Academic Institute of Nephrology (B% £
flT%€) and seminars on pharmaceutical products at prefecture-
level. As the participants of the activities held by Academic Institute
of Nephrology at prefecture-level are the physicians from provincial,
municipal and county, we could engage in direct dialogue with
front line staff through these events, and this would help us in
achieving good results in research and development as well as the
understanding to the market conditions.
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Further, our new production line for injecting drug obtained the Good
Manufacturing Practice Certificate during the year. We have made
effort in business solicitation for our three workshops in producing
minor products and in the tender of basic drug, for promoting
diversified development of the Company while exerting efforts in
exploring and developing more dominant products.

Lastly, the Company passed the review of “national high-tech
enterprise” in July 2012 and is entitled to the preferential Enterprise
Tax rate of 15% during the year.

Looking ahead, we will take the launch of our new plant as an
opportunity to enhance our work on management in every segment
and we will endeavor to realize rapid growth with our strong capability
and our development concept of “technological innovation and
serving the public”.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks
to all levels of staff and the management for their efforts and
contributions in 2013 and my deep gratitude to our clients, business
partners and owners for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
27 March 2014
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN RN

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s turnover
increased to RMB457,746,000 from approximately RMB353,247,000
while the profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company
increased to RMB79,274,000 from RMB58,754,000. For the year
ended 31 December 2013, basic earnings per share increased to
RMB14.15 cents from RMB10.49 cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the manufacturing and sales of
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (82 & =B %) continued to be the Group’s
core source of revenue. The medicine of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule
has penetrated into the market, the sales of which rose by 33% as
compared with 2012. The sales of Compound Huonaoshu capsule
(1B 77 E IS &7 B €) reached RMB59,582,000 for the year ended 31
December 2013, which became the second best seller of the Group
in 2013. Other products such as Edaravone injection (fkZEHIZ=F 51
&), Xue Shuan Xin Mai Ning capsule (I /0K 2 B 2), Dong Gui Long
Hui tablet (&5 &€ H), Qian Lie Gui Huang tablet (AI%I#£% /) also
contributed sales amount of RMB52,225,000 in 2013, details of which
were further elaborated under the Section “Financial Review”.

OPERATION REVIEW

Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company has already
obtained GMP certificates for the following:

1. Tablets (F &) - valid until 8 August 2015
2. Capsules (FE2ZHI) — valid until 8 August 2015

3. Sterile Bulk (Cefalotin sodium, Cefpiramide) (& R 1} %% (58 16 18
VY80 ~ BBFUCRZ )) — valid until 8 August 2015

4. Pills (Water Pills), Membrane (A EI(7k#,) ~ FEHI) — valid until 8
August 2015

5. Powder for injection (Cephalosporins) (38 & =81 &1 &) — valid
until 29 December 2018

6. Lyophilized powder for injection (RE ¥ #H#I) — valid until 29
December 2018

7. Small volume Parenteral Solution (/NA2JE51Al) - valid until 29
December 2018

8.  Sterile Bulk (Yan Suan Tou Bao Jia Tong) (& [R1} % (B EL 55
R A5)), Bulk (Edaravone) (JR#H2%5) (fkiEHZE) — valid until 17
October 2018

9.  Bulk drug (Fucoidan, Extractum for fructus gardeniae) R ¥ (18
B ZFEBLER - HEFIREU) — valid unit 31 December 2015
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEWR DN

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential for the
future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past, our R&D
department had successfully developed the medicine, Compound
Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit to the
Company and finally led to the listing of the Company in Hong Kong.
In the year of 2003, our R&D department completed the development
of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule, which has now become the first largest
contributor of revenue and its revenue jumped by 33% as compared
with last year.

PRODUCTION FACILITIES

During the year, the addition of the construction in progress included
acquisition of a plot of land of approximately 50,000 sg.m., which will
be the third phase of our new production line developments, while
the lands acquired in the year 2012 represented the first and second
development phase.

The first and second development phase represented an area of
approximately 12,000 sg.m., which houses six production lines and
two workshops for producing five medicaments under two Good
Manufacturing Practice Certificates; and an area of approximately
20,000 sqg.m., which houses six production lines and three workshops
for producing six medicaments under two Good Manufacturing
Practice Certificates, respectively. The first development phase has
been completed and in use since 2012, while the second phase has
been completed during the year and have commenced operation in
February 2014. The third phase is currently under construction. We
believe the developments will further enhance our group production
capacity.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s recorded
a revenue amounted to approximately RMB457,746,000 (2012:
RMB353,247,000), a growth of approximately 30% as compared
with the figure of the previous year. The audited profit for the
year attributable to owners of the Company was approximately
RMB79,274,000, representing an increase of 35% as compared with
RMB58,754,000 of the previous year. The basic earnings per share
amounted to RMB14.15 cents (2012: RMB10.49 cents), representing
an increase of RMB3.66 cents over the previous year.

The obvious growth in turnover was mainly attributable to the increase
in the revenue from our core revenue generator, namely Hai Kun Shen
Xi capsule (BEE =B %). The medicine of Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule
had penetrated into the market, with the sales of which in 2013 rising
by 33% as compared with 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the sales of Compound
Huonaoshu capsule amounted to approximately RMB59,582,000.

The Board of Directors is pleased with the financial performance
in 2013. It is believed that the remarkable growth in profitability is
attributed to the following reasons.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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Firstly, with its explicit therapeutic effects as well as pragmatic and
innovative academic promotion, our dominant products, namely
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (8 E B E B %), has become increasingly
notable among similar products in the PRC in terms of its competitive
strength and its market kept expanding. This together with the fact
that our production line for injecting drugs has obtained the Good
Manufacturing Practice Certificate, has the bolstered growth and
development of enterprises.

Secondly, we made eminent progress in terms of strengthening
the market control, unifying the price products supplied, regulating
sales practices, insisting on the principles of mainly focusing on the
clinical market of hospitals and extending its investment in the market
development of hospitals and clinics and in academic promotion.

Thirdly, in addition to proactively organise and participate in annual
activities held under the Academic Institute of Nephrology (E/&Z
i &) at the state level, we also took part in the annual activities
held under the Academic Institute of Nephrology (B & Z1i1F€) and
seminars on pharmaceutical products at prefecture-level, as the
participants of the activities held by Academic Institute of Nephrology
at prefecture-level are the physicians from provincial, municipal and
county. We were well-positioned to further expand grassroots medical
market and reward patients’ feedback.

Fourthly, we continued to recruit temporary sales staff. We have
nurtured the sense of taking consideration of the whole environment
and the sense of responsibilities of every sales in charge of regional
market and sales manager at provincial level. Meanwhile, we have
also focused our work for preparing our products to be listed in
local medical insurance of products, supplemental catalogue of new
rural cooperative medical system as well as for the product tender
and filing the price of products. Through our concerted effort, we
will shorten the time for development of our sales market and hence
making our market coverage wider.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2013 was
approximately 81.5%, representing a 0.5% decrease as compared
with that of 82% for the year ended 31 December 2012.

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB14,877,000, contrasting to a
figure of RMB9,977,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012.

Distribution and selling costs rose to approximately RMB255,319,000
for the year ended 31 December 2013 from approximately
RMB203,658,000 in last year. These expenses accounted for 56%
of turnover in 2013, which represented a 2% decrease from 58% as
compared with the corresponding period of last year. The increase
in distribution and selling costs of approximately RMB51,661,000
was mainly due to the growth in staff remuneration as a result of the
recruitment of temporary sales persons.

BE TEmE(EREERR INERBEMEY
MENEE TEHERF - EBRARBEERT L
FEEAERY > THRBETEHER - $#EH4
ERBBITMOMPRE - MUB P ERFELRE -

“RE-TMETSEE - HEER  RE
WETR  BRUBEKBRATSATEORA
MR ISR N ERBMHERERRA - BRE
o

—RERABM2ERZAERENFSEHA
i ERFEENERERSIF RN
REMENERBMELLE & WRBKRB
MESEHOEEE - T BORKELE  £H
BHRA  BirwinREEEERETS - LERE
HIRHE °

MO A BINITIRITIHE A BRIRIEE 8 - BRI
MHABAMERHELBTMBAREZ - 1B
REMED BRI EREANMTEBR MRS
HMREEE ExBRENYERESERIE
fe L RSB REFMEHE TSR
R hRIEE R

HE-_Z—=F+-"A=1+—RILFE  E£KE
ML BE815%  BEHE-E——F+-_A=+—
HIEFE 282%40.5% °

BE-_Z—=%+_A=+—HIFE  K&£H
RS EMIRA R EL AR EE14,877,0007T
mMEBE—ZT——F+-_A=+—RALFENNAE
AR#9,977,0007T ©

BE_Z—=+-A=+—RBILEE H#HEE
HEMYAEFHARE203,658,000 018 1%
4 ANR#255,319,000T - R-ZT—=F » %=
HY EEEENE DL B56%  REFREPZ
58% M 2% o D M HER TG INEH AR
51,661,0007C - T ZHNERBRKIEEAES
BB THBEM -

TG REE (L EERNERAR
—EB-=FFER



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

10

BEEWR DN

For the year ended 31 December 2013, administrative expenses
increased to approximately RMB37,347,000 from approximately
RMB26,808,000 last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this
year. As at 31 December 2013, cash and bank balances of the
Group amounted to RMB70,359,000 (2012: RMB89,374,000) with
total borrowings of RMB8,830,000 (2012: RMB11,450,000) which
were interest bearing at commercial rates and unsecured. As at 31
December 2013, the Group had total assets of RMB650,123,000
(2012: RMB536,052,000) which were financed by current liabilities of
RMB151,461,000 (2012: RMB121,886,000), long term borrowings
of RMB8,148,000 (2012: RMB4,784,000), deferred tax liabilities
of RMB338,000 (2012: RMB61,000) and shareholders’ equity of
RMB473,532,000 (2012: RMB394,258,000).

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB70,359,000. As at 31 December 2012, the ratio
of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was 27% (2012:
26%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities
of RMB176,591,000 (2012: RMB141,794,000) by the Group’s total
equity and liabilities of RMB650,123,000 (2012: RMB536,052,000).
The Group’s gearing ratio which derived from the total borrowings to
total net assets was 1.9% (2012: 2.9%).

EMPLOYEES

The Group has a total of 559 full-time employees and has employed
some temporary sales persons. For the year ended 31 December
2013, the total remuneration of employees, including directors’
remuneration amounting to approximately RMB126,138,000 (2012:
approximately RMB91,689,000).

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions
and the performance, qualifications and experience of individual
employee. Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance
will be paid to employees as recognition of and reward for their
contribution. Other benefits include contributions to retirement
scheme and medical scheme.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 59, male, is the Chairman, general manager and secretary of
the Party committee. He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior
economist. His previous positions are as follows: He was a teacher
and the secretary of Youth League Committee of Huinan No. 4 Middle
School from September 1978 to October 1983; he worked in county
and town governments from November 1983 to September 1989,
during which he held the position of deputy town head; he has been
the Chairman, general manager and secretary of the Party committee
of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
since October 1989.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 50, male, is an executive director and deputy general manager.
He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. He held the
positions of the secretary of Youth League Committee of Chaoyang
town engineer affairs equipment factory of Shenyang railway bureau
from July 1983 to September 1989; deputy director of foreign trade
bureau of Huinan County from October 1989 to November 1990;
executive director and deputy general manager of the Company since
December 1990.

Tian Xin Guo

Aged 57, male, is an executive director and deputy secretary of
the Party committee. He holds a master degree and is a senior
economist. He acted as the Secretary of the Ministry of Public
Transportation and the Economics and Trading Committee in Huinan
County from December 1979 to September 1984; studied in the Jilin
Province Radio and Television University for associate degree from
October 1984 to September 1986; from October 1986 to November
1986, has was general officer of Huinan County government office;
from December 1986 to March 1990, the Chief of the Transportation
Management Office in Huinan County and the Secretary of the Party
Branch; from April 1990 to September 1995, the Deputy Director
of the Transportation Bureau in Huinan County; from October
1995 to September 1999, the Director of the State-owned Assets
Management Bureau; from October 1999 to October 2001, the
Director of the Planning Bureau in Huinan County; from November
2001 to May 2007, the district manager, deputy secretary of the
Party committee and secretary of discipline committee of Huinan
Changlong Bio—pharmacy Company and on 9 August 2007, he
commenced to perform his duties of executive director and district
manager, deputy secretary of the Party committee and secretary of
discipline committee of the Company.
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Chen Qi Ming

Aged 56, male, is an executive director and a senior economist with a
bachelor degree. From October 1978 to July 1982, he studied in Jilin
Agriculture University; from August 1982 to October 1989, he worked
in Economics and Trading Committee and Heavy Industries Bureau in
Huinan County; from November 1989 to October 1995, he worked in
Agricultural Machinery Bureau and Agricultural Bureau of the county;
from November 1995 to April 2002, acted as director of Technology
Bureau; from May 2002 to August 2007, worked as district manager
of Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company; commenced to
perform his duties of executive director and district manager of the
Company on 9 August 2007.

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 49, male, is an executive director and chief engineer. He holds
a master degree and is a Pharmacist-in-charge and senior engineer.
From July 1984 to August 1986, he studied in Shanxi Province Herbal
School; from September 1986 to August 1988, he acted as director
of quality inspection department of herbal medicine company in
Huinan County; from September 1988 to August 1991, he studied
in Shanghai Medicine University; from September 1991 to January
1993, he acted as district manager of Changlong Bio-pharmacy
Company; from February 1993 to May 1996, he pursued master
degree in Jilin University; from June 1996 to August 2007, he acted
as chief engineer of Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company and
commenced to perform his duties of executive director and chief
engineer on 9 August 2007.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 47, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer. He
holds an associate degree and is a certified accountant, certified
estimator and senior economist. From July 1987 to July 1990, he
studied in Jilin Finance and Tax Training School; from August 1990 to
May 1995, he acted as director of Finance Bureau of Huinan County;
from August 1996 to December 2006, he held the position of director
and equipment director of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-
pharmacy Company Limited and was appointed as director and chief
finance officer of the Company in March 2007.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Shen Yu Xiang

Aged 63, male, is an independent non-executive director. From
April 1984 to October 1995, he acted as deputy director of Finance
Bureau of Huinan County; from November 1995 to October 1998, he
worked as dean of Finance and Trade Office of Huinan County; from
November 1998 to December 2000, he acted as director of Audit
Bureau of Huinan County and was appointed as independent director
of the Company since 2001.

Xue Chang Qing

Aged 52, male, is an independent non-executive director with a
bachelor degree and is a senior auditor, international certified internal
auditor, certified accountant, certified assets estimator and certified
tax agent. From September 1978 to September 1981, he studied
in Changchun Machinery Industrial School majoring in machinery
manufacture; from September 1981 to May 1988, he acted as
accountant of Changchun Printing and Dyeing Factory; from May
1988 to January 2006, he worked as accountant, internal auditor,
senior auditor and deputy dean of finance office of Changchun
Institute of Applied Chemistry Chinese Academy of Sciences; since
January 2006, he has acted as dean of assessment department
of Jilin Jinshi Certified Public Accountants Company Limited. He
commenced to perform his duties of independent director of the
Company on 9 August 2007.

Yan Li Jin

Aged 59, male, is an independent non-executive director and holds
a master degree. From March 1977 and January 1980, he studied
in Politics and History Department of Si Ping Normal University; from
July 1994 to July 1997, he studied in History Department of Northeast
Normal University; from January 1998 to March 2000, pursued master
degree in Northeast Normal University; from January 1980 to July
1993, he worked as teacher and dean of students of Huinan No.1
Middle School; from August 19983 to January 1997, he acted as
principal of Huinan No.1 Middle School and commenced to perform
his duties of independent director of the Company on 9 August 2007.
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SUPERVISORS

Zhang Jing Zhou

Aged 65, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in March 1995. He
has acted as the Chairman of labour union and supervisory committee
of the Company since 1996.

Wu Wei Men

Aged 44, male, graduated from Dandong Textile Training School with
associated degree in industrial accounting in 1991. From 1991 to
2004, he worked as finance director of hardware factory of Huinan
County. He joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in 2004 and has acted as
supervisor of the Company since 9 August 2007.

Li Bao Hai

Aged 57, male, he joined Changlong Bio-pharmacy in July 1990. He
worked as an electrician and dean of electricity distribution office. He
has acted as the Supervisor of the Company since 1996.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 34, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 13
years of experience in auditing and accounting.

Zhang Yan Jun

Aged 48, male, holds an associate degree and is the secretary of
the board of Directors and senior economist. From August 1985 to
October 1995, he worked as director of finance department of the
Second Light Industrial Bureau of Huinan County; from November
1995 to October 1996, director of production department of economy
and trade committee of Huinan County; from November 1996 to
July 2007, deputy secretary of the Party committee of Huinan Taitai
Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and the chairman of Supervisory
Committee. He has acted as dean of security department of Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited since August 2007 and
secretary of the board of directors since November 2009.

Yang Ze Shu

Aged 46, male, graduated from Yanbian Medical College in 1992 with
a bachelor degree. He is Chief Quality Officer and chief pharmacist
and senior engineer. From 1992 to 1999, he acted as dean of
Pharmaceutical office of Institute for Drug Control. He has worked as
Chief Quality Officer of the Company since 2000.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEREE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements
of the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2013.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29 December
1995, under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law, the
Company was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to a
limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval of the
Economic Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province, the Company
was further converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20
April 1999, the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of
retained profits at the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
(“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution
of biochemical medicines in the PRC under the brand names of
Changlong and Shendi. There were no changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the manufacture
and distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC. In 2013,
turnover of the Group was generated entirely from sales in the PRC
and all identifiable assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
Accordingly, no business or geographical segmental analysis is
prepared for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 35 to 111.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets
and liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes
below. This summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

MBEREE

AT AEREEEAHEEAREERBEZE
E - DR TXHEASRELERR T2 IBE

ERMBwmR 2 D -

Results E
2013 2012
—E—= —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Turnover L 457,746 353,247
Profit before income tax T B A 94,609 68,869
Income tax expense Frig®isz i (15,335) (10,115)
Profit for the year from ordinary activities ~— AREFRERZEB AEG
attributable to owners of the Company =R el 79,274 58,754
Assets and liabilities BEEREE
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETIT
Total assets EEE 650,123 536,052
Total liabilities FEN=N (176,591) (141,794)
Net assets BEFE 473,532 394,258

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets of the Group and the Company
during the year are set out in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to the financial
statements respectively.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group made no material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries
and affiliated companies during the year ended 31 December 2013.
As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no other future plans
for material investments or significant changes in capital assets of
subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 20
to the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group and the Company are set out
in Note 29 and 30 to the financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by shareholders’
equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing
the Group’s cash and cash equivalents in interest bearing deposits,
and to fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year
are set out in Note 33 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and in Note 34 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2013, the reserves of the Company available
for cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to
approximately RMB344,375,000 (2012: RMB264,559,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 25% of its goods to its five
largest customers (2012: 24%) and sales to the largest customer
included therein accounted for 7% (2012: 7%) of the Group’s total
sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five largest
suppliers accounted for about 35% (2012: 51%) of the Group’s
total purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers therein
accounted for 13% (2012: 24%) of the Group’s total purchases.
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None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five
largest customers and five largest suppliers noted above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. The directors
consider the impact on foreign exchange exposure of the Group
is minimal. Accordingly the Group did not employ any financial
instruments for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group and the Company
as at 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 35 to the financial
statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year and up
to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Tian Xin Guo

Mr. Chen Qi Ming

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang

Mr. Xue Chang Qing

Mr. Yan Li Jin

Supervisors

Mr. Zhang Jing Zhou
Mr. Wu Wei Men

Mr. Li Bao Hai

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out in the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of the annual report.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those of
the five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 14 to
the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent
Non-Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a term
of three years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered
into any service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
which is not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS

IN SHARES

At 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in

EERESERROMERS

R-ZB—=F+-A=+—0 A2 a5&ESE -

ERFETBRAEBRAR T&Efﬂﬁﬁﬁawﬁl
(FEREBEHNEEGEH ([ %&Eﬁfwﬁuj)
XVEB) 89 B 15 Xaﬁﬁﬂﬂ REHFTHEAREE

K HAEAEBISE 35216 + B AZIGAT il 2 s it A9
AR WE%FE%%xPﬁEIJ%& 5 EmRAI
([BIZEWR LR A ) 55.46156E5.67IKFIEEE
BEREIZEMBMNGADR MBI TOER R

Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities A& :
on the Growth Enterprise Market of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) were as follows:
Long positions in shares REROHRE
Percentage of
total registered
Type of Number of Percentage of Share Capital
Director Interests Capacity Domestic Shares Domestic Shares i 48 5 AR A<
= R 514 ANEREE ERERBS L WEDL
Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
BEEIN & A BEREAA
Zhang Xiao Guang Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 7.55
SREES & A BEREAA
Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
REIX & A BEREAA
Chen Qi Ming Personal Beneficial owner 300,000 0.077 0.054
BREREA & A BEREAA
Shen Yu Xiang Personal Beneficial owner 150,000 0.039 0.027
LEFRE & A BEREAA
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, none of the FREXMAEEEIN R-FT—=F+_-_A=+—
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has E RRARES BEERFETHASHENE

any interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company and its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
minimum standards of dealing by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46
to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and supervisors’
interests in shares” above, at no time during the year were there any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company granted to any director, supervisor
and chief executive or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors, supervisors and chief
executives to acquire such rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2013, the following persons (other than the
Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

EEBARODAVER
REXTEERESRIRNOED | —BAEEE
S BREE  BEERTIZTBABRBEZEN
BT N\ERA T FRMBERRITEEMTER
BAXRBIRMHESFMERM S 2R A
NE - HERARREAAMNE R NERE
MRPE REE  EERIBTHRABATRER
HAEEBAZSER -

REESZRBERARTFRENE
#wREERR
R-B—=#+-A=1—8  BRAXTDRRE

|

7 LB GPIFE 336 EFHBR B MER
ATAL(ARRESE BEERTIBTHRARR
SMRAR BB MBI PR AR IAR

il

Long positions in Domestic shares RREBRHRER
Percentage of
Capacity/ Number of Percentage of  total registered
Name of shareholder Nature of Interest Domestic Shares Domestic Shares Share Capital
1k 48 5 i B A
RERERB B REEME RNERHEE MHRERBEDLE WESL
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63

EERWRREGREEAR(ME) BZEEA

Note: Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB does not have
any direct or indirect interest in the Company, including representatives in the
Board of Directors.

Long positions in H shares

et BRAMEARRMEAERS  BEBMRIREAEREFE

RAYEEEARRNEMEE LA EER  BEEE
FEANRE -

RHRHWRE

Percentage of

Number of Percentage of  total registered

Name of shareholder Capacity H Shares H Shares Share Capital

LB

REEME &4 HR#E EHRE S MBS

Chen Jingwei Beneficial owner 29,520,000 17.11% 5.269%
BRm g EERA

Shen Qianzhen Beneficial owner 13,996,000 8.11% 2.498%

i BEmEAA

TG B REA(CEERNBERAR
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2013, the Directors
were not aware of any other person (other than the Directors,
Supervisors and Chief Executives of the Company) who had interests
and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and the
Company were entered into or were in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the significant
shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company had any interest in a business, which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article
of association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was established, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no material related party transactions,
which constituted connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the employer’s
staff retirement costs charged to the profit and loss account for the
year are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with
written terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as
set out in Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary
duties of the Audit Committee are to review and provide supervision
over the financial reporting procedures and internal control system of
the Group.

The committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the
audited results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2013.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published
audited financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out
on page 112 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 24 to 31 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to Annual General Meeting of the
Company to re-appoint the auditors, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK)
CPA Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
27 March 2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieve high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interest of its shareholders and enhance
its corporate value. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2013
and up to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required standard
of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has also made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December
2013.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Tian Xin Guo

Mr. Chen Qi Ming

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang

Mr. Xue Chang Qing

Mr. Yan Li Jin

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised nine Directors, six
of whom are Executive Directors, three of whom are INEDs of the
Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director
are set out on the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors
and Senior Management” of this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim
results, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational
and financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically
delegated by the Board of Directors to the management include the
preparation of annual and interim accounts for Board approval before
public reporting, execution of business strategies, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management
procedures, and compliance with relevant statutory requirements and
rules and regulations. Executive Directors are responsible for running
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The
INEDs serve the relevant function of bringing independent judgement
on the development, performance and risk management of the Group
through their contributions in board meeting.

All Directors have given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold
the position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is independent
in character and judgement. The Company has received from each
INED a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Board papers are circulated not
less than 7 days before the Board meetings to enable the Directors
to make informed decisions on matters to be raised at the board
meetings. Minutes of board meetings are kept be the Company
Secretary and are open for inspection at any reasonable time on
reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no financial, business
and family relationship among the members of the Board.

EXCRBORRE FERTHES HIS
2 EREE Z2UE HEREARS MU
REMBREENVBEE - EFSHHIRTE
BEREZEARNRFEHBERUFE LT HER
BYRAHAAMATKEEEHA  HITEBER
B - BEig R AR ANESNRARLRAREERRER
ARETHREAERE - RAUMGH - MITES
BEREZEFERPITESERMNZBR - B
FNTESEBHEEFTEZ LEXRER © BT
RAEENER  RIRMERER T AL HE
A RTEE -

MEEFECEG TANEREMENBIASES
%o BRATEFTHERAKRECHEBUIAE
MAME BERAITIIS ©

EFERR BEUFRTESNSGH LAY
BB - ARRDEERBIYIFNTERZIE
RE - BRBRENABFER ETRAFS.091&FT
HEMBILIEZRE

EFERFROBTHAGH N8 FERET
—R AmARENER EBMMBRR - E
FENHEREFEEANSLOTREL  £E
FANRSEESTERNFTHRELANBERT - &

SERCHHARANERT  TAEFAEE
HEEANTRIRNGERBREHNESEEHAL

BEEMAE  EFERRBZHELENE - %
BRBERR -

TG B REA(CEERNBERAR
—EB-=FFER

25



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERERE

Board meetings
During the year, six regular board meetings were held. Details of the
attendance of the Directors are as follows:

EsggR
N RBASARAEEREE  EERUE
HEWT :

Meetings attended/Held

Directors 2= BHE BETEER
Executive Directors BITES

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) SRoAF A (EE) 6/6
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SRR A 6/6
Mr. Tian Xin Guo FH 37 B 5 A 6/6
Mr. Chen Qi Ming [ R BR 4t 4= 6/6
Mr. Wu Guo Wen REISEAE 6/6
Mr. Zhao Bao Gang HEMLE 4 6/6
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUMITES

Mr. Shen Yu Xiang EERERE 6/6
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BERBLE 6/6
Mr. Yan Li Jin BiEeittE 6/6
Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the Board KB ELlRFEZ THESESSFI 22SAA

of Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-level decision
on a particular matter is required. The Directors will receive details
of agenda items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in
advance of each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both
the chairman and the chief executive officer of the Company. The
Board is of the view that this has not compromised accountability and
independent decision making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of Independent
Non-executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional
advice when considered necessary.
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Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and has considerable industry experience. He is motivated
to contribute to the growth and profitability of the Group. The Board
is of the view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have
an executive chairman so that the Board can have the benefit of a
chairman who is knowledgeable about the business of the Group
and is most capable to guide discussions and brief the Board in a
timely manner on pertinent issues and developments to facilitate open
dialogue between the Board and the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and sufficient
experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as to protect
the interests of shareholders. Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, Mr. Xue Chang Qing
and Mr. Yan Li Jin are the INEDs.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs
are appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of office
shall continue after the expiration of the initial term until at least 1
month’s prior written notice is given by either party or the Company to
terminate the same.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Every Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction
on appointment and they are continually updated on developments
in the statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and
market changes to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities
and obligations under the GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory
requirements.

To ensure that all Directors’ contribution into the Board remain
informed and relevant, they have participated in continuous
professional development for the year ended 31 December 2013 to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skill. During the year under
review, the Company has provided updates and coordinated training
on the GEM Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements to the
Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report, the
chairman of the committee is Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, an INED, and other
members include Mr. Xue Chang Qing, and Mr. Zhang Hong, the
majority being INEDs. The remuneration committee schedules meet
at least once a year and the quorum necessary for the transaction of
business is two.
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to
the board of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The
remuneration committee should consider factors such as salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities of
the Directors, employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration
Committee held two meeting. The individual attendance records of
each member are as follows:

SNEEe AR BREEMAENTES
ZEEFHESRBEEMN G RS RMEN
R(BRARERRIERSBU S ERMN 2E
AAE)ARAEETEHUIFATES 2 HMREH
2 - TMEZEeRERSBERARMIMATLRA
AXNZ#HE  BEFAREZEREAREE A%E
H 377 2 BS AR S 32 R IR E %7 B 2 T B
1 o

REBE-_E—=6+-A=+—BIHBEE
FINFHZESRITTRAREE - SKE Z @5
RN T

Meetings attended/Held

Members RE CHE TETEE
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) IEEFEREERE) 2/2
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BERBEAE 2/2
Mr. Zhang Hong sRBA ST 2/2

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the Directors and
members of senior management, and discussed the remuneration
policy of the Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company considers that the existing terms of
employment contracts of the Executive Directors and appointment
letters of the INEDs are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee according
to the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with written
terms of reference. Its primary responsibilities include reviewing and
supervising the framework, number of members and composition
of the Board and making proposals to the Board in respect of
any changes and identifying and nominating suitable persons for
appointment of Director.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises of
one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and two INEDs, Mr.
Xue Chang Qing and Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, which is in compliance with
the requirement of the GEM Listing Rules that INEDs should form
the majority of the Nomination Committee. Mr. Shen Yu Xiang is the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review
and approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination
Committee will evaluate potential candidates considering factors such
as professional expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and
integrity.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination
Committee held three meetings. During the meeting, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the framework, number
of members and composition of the Board. Also, the Nomination
Committee has identified and made proposals in respect of the
outstanding appointment of Executive Directors and INEDs. The
individual attendance records of each member are as follows:

REBRFERARAZESHIILBARERA
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BEEEA  EEBEXEKE  HRELR  EAAR
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Meetings attended/Held

Members RE CHE TETEE
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) IEEFEREERE) 3/3
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BERBEAE 3/3
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SR ST 3/3

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited was the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2013. Other than annual
auditing services, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited did not
provide non-auditing services to the Company or any of the Group’s
companies during the year.

Auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2013 is set
out in Note 9 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently
comprises three members, Mr. Shen Yu Xiang, Mr. Xue Chang Qing
and Mr. Yan Li Jin. All of them are INEDs. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Shen Yu Xiang. The Board considers that each
Audit Committee has broad commercial experience and there is a
suitable mix of expertise in business, legal, accounting and financial
management in the Audit Committee.

% 2R 5 A
HE_Z—=6+"F=1+—HIFE A2 F
2B AN ZRIEEE (BB S MERKIA
RAR] - BREEFZREIN - FANZEZBG
(BB)e:HMEBAERARLER AN G KT
AAREEEMA B QIR EIEZE R -

HE-_Z—=F+-_A=1T—HIFEZHMF
i e 0 B 75 R R BT A9

BEREEY

BERZBERUN_FT—F  BAHRLERFSL
B BRBEEANSREAE=BNEEN - &
SURBIFATEE - BRZEGIFERLE
HEE BEESRREERZEGNEHAEER
N ERSR  BERZENEEHRATH
X RR SRTMUBEESIENEEMND

TG B REA(CEERNBERAR
—EB-=FFER

29



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

30

TEERERE

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal
financial interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross-
directorships or day-to-day involvement in the running of the
business. The Audit Committee oversees the financial reporting
process and the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s
system of internal control. During the year, the Audit Committee
carried out their own independent review of the interim and annual
financial statements and financial reports and statements included
in circulars of the Company published during the year. And with the
assistance of the internal audit department, which reports directly
to the committee, the Audit Committee completed its review of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal
control and reported its findings and recommendations to the Board.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as
follows:

ERZEEMEXNERATAEAES  BEE
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Meetings attended/Held

Members RE CHE TETEE
Mr. Shen Yu Xiang (Chairman) IEEFEREERE) 4/4
Mr. Xue Chang Qing BERBEAE 4/4
Mr. Yan Li Jin BEetE 4/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual
audited results during the year ended 31 December 2013 have been
reviewed by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that
the preparation of such results were complied with the applicable
accounting standards and requirements and that adequate disclosure
have been made.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of the
financial statements of the Group and shall ensure that the financial
statements are in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Directors also ensure the timely
publication of the financial statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company, Reanda Lau
& Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on
the financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent
Auditor’s Report on pages 33 and 34 of this annual report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERERE

COMPANY SECRETARY

In 2013, the Company Secretary took the relevant professional
training of 15 hours relating to general corporate governance issues.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Company has conducted review of its system of internal control
periodically to ensure the effective and adequate internal control
system. The Company convened meeting periodically to discuss
financial, operational and risk management control. The Directors are
of the view that the existing system of internal control is effective and
adequate to the Group.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive information about
the Company’s activities is provided in the Annual Report and the
Interim Report which are sent to shareholders. There is regular
dialogue with institutional investors. Enquiries from individuals on
matters relating to their shareholdings and the business of the
Company are welcomed and are dealt with in an informative and
timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General
Meeting at which all directors and Committee chairs are available
for questions. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual
General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
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ESERES

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liabilities)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the requirements of the relevant laws
and regulations of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the
Company (the “relevant rules and regulations”), the Supervisory
Committee of the Company exercised conscientiously its authority,
safeguarded the interests of the shareholders of the Company and
the Company, and followed the principle of honesty and integrity and
worked cautiously and diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice on
the operations and development plans to the Directors and strictly
and effectively monitored whether the policies of the Company had
conformed with the relevant rules and regulations or safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial statements
of the Company give a true and fair picture of the operating results
and asset position of the Company. We also consider that the Report
of the Directors and the profit distribution proposal meet the relevant
rules and regulations. We have attended the meeting of the Board.
We are of the opinion that the meeting was convened in accordance
with the relevant rules and regulations. We consider that the members
of the Board, the general manager and other senior management
of the Company have strictly complied with the principle of honesty
and trustworthiness, worked diligently and sincerely exercised their
authority to the best interests of the Company. None of the Directors,
general manager nor other senior management of the Company have
abused their powers, caused damage to the interests of the Company
and infringed upon the interests of the Company shareholders and its
staff, nor have they violated the relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the cost-
effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the Company will
have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Zhang Jing Zhou
Chairman

Jilin Province, the PRC
27 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

BAZBMBRESE

.: REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

MRZRIERIS (HE)EEMEHMBIRAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China with limited liabilities)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set out on
pages 35 to 111, which comprise the consolidated and Company
balance sheet as at 31 December 2013, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are
free from material misstatement.

21/F, Tai Yau Building, BEAET
181 Johnston Road, HEEFuE1815
Wanchai, Hong Kong RERE21E
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BAZBMBRESE

.‘ REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

FIREBIEKES (58 EE TR HAMBIRAE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (continued)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 December 2013 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Franklin Lau Shiu Wai
Director
Practising Certificate number PO1886

Hong Kong, 27 March 2014

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

ReBmRkHEMEE KGR
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE—T—=F+_A=1+—HIFFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKEZT)
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR¥ET T ARETTT
Turnover LR 4 457,746 353,247
Cost of sales SHE KR (84,689) (63,593)
Gross profit EF 373,057 289,654
Other income H AU A 6 14,768 9,924
Other gains H Uy s 7 109 53
Distribution and selling costs DIERIEERX (255,319) (203,658)
Administrative expenses ITHFAX (37,347) (26,808)
Profit from operations £ T 95,268 69,165
Finance costs A& R A 8 (659) (296)
Profit before income tax T Bz A 9 94,609 68,869
Income tax expense FRSHisZ i 10(a) (15,335) (10,115)
Profit for the year ARG [ A 79,274 58,754
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEU s _ _
Total comprehensive income for the year XEEZ2EUNZFEEE 79,274 58,754
Profit attributable to: AT EEAREF
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE Z PN 79,274 58,754
Total comprehensive income T EAZEKE
attributable to: g
Owners of the Company RAREB A 79,274 58,754
Earnings per share FRRZEF
- Basic (RMB cents) —EAR(ARED) 11 14.15 10.49
Dividends = 13 - 7,003

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

BEP 2 Mt A S R B2 — 8D ©

TG B REA(CEERNBERAR
—EB-=FFER



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
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meEEAER
As at 31 December 2013
RZF—=F+="A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥ET T ARBFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Bearer biological assets TRBEMEE 16 4,890 2,850
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 17 99,483 107,462
Prepaid land lease payments B S 18 17,335 17,789
Construction in progress EEIR 19 145,834 66,777
Intangible assets M E E 21 11,229 15,855
278,771 210,733
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 22 25,581 35,342
Trade receivables TEIE FEER 24 121,184 106,209
Other receivables, deposits HEmEWIE - ;T &k
and prepayments B RIE 25 87,184 54,209
Loans receivables RUE R 26 36,590 39,732
Prepaid land lease payments A TR S 18 454 453
Available-for-sale financial assets A HEM S EE 23 30,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents BeRkBEEEY 27 70,359 89,374
371,352 325,319
Current liabilities pEI=RE
Trade payables FEE SRR 28 10,830 7,953
Other payables, deposits received H R RIE - 21
and accruals e NESTER 123,929 83,589
Deferred income IRFEHA 31 1,886 313
Income tax payable ERATSH 3,935 9,933
Other tax payables H b e R I8 8,326 11,095
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 - 6,000
Loans from government authority BT E R 30 682 666
Dividend payable FERTRLE 1,873 2,337
151,461 121,886
Net current assets RBEEZE 219,891 203,433
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 498,662 414,166

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2013



CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

meEEEAER
As at 31 December 2013
RZF—=F+="A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARHEZ2TR)
2013 2012
—E—= =B ——4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 AR¥ET T ARBFIT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Loans from government authority BT E R 30 4,148 4,784
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 4,000 -
Deferred income EIEURA 31 16,644 15,063
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE 32 338 61
25,130 19,908
Net assets EEFE 473,532 394,258
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS & F#A AR
OF THE COMPANY R
Share capital R 7R 33 56,025 56,025
Reserves ] 417,507 338,233
Total equity FESERE 473,532 394,258

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by #“EFVBHRENR_T—HF=A_++HEE=S

the board of directors on 27 March 2014. HEE NI o
ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
KA HER
Director Director
BFE EFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial  B&Mf ZfisF B A MR EE Y —3H -
statements.
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BALANCE SHEET

38

EEE/E/X

As at 31 December 2013
RZF—=F+="A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)
2013 2012
—E—= —F——
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
k23 ARET T ARET T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERAE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Bearer biological assets TREEMEE 16 4,890 2,850
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMEE 17 99,483 107,462
Prepaid land lease payments TS 18 17,335 17,789
Construction in progress TEEITR 19 145,834 66,777
Investment in subsidiaries RITE A RMIEE 20 25,500 25,500
Intangible assets WA E 21 11,229 15,855
304,271 236,233
Current assets REBEE
Inventories ey 22 25,581 35,342
Trade receivables FEULE ZBR 24 142,533 121,863
Other receivables, deposits Etbpliziia « 5] &
and prepayments KIB IR 25 82,391 51,461
Loans receivables eI E R 26 36,590 39,732
Prepaid land lease payments AN e 18 454 453
Available-for-sale financial assets AN EM S EE 23 30,000 -
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEeEEY 27 62,251 84,572
379,800 333,423
Current liabilities pE=RE
Trade payables FEE SRR 28 10,830 7,953
Other payables, deposits received EmpEMzE - BlETS
and accruals KERHE R 122,471 82,684
Amounts due to subsidiaries TERB B A RZIA 20 24,660 24,660
Deferred income IRIEUT A 31 1,886 313
Income tax payable FERTETS L 3,935 9,933
Other tax payables E b SRR 7,864 10,278
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 - 6,000
Loans from government authority BT E R 30 682 666
Dividend payable AR B 1,873 2,337
174,201 144,824
Net current assets REEEFE 205,599 188,599
Total assets less current liabilities wEERRDARE 509,870 424,832

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2013



BALANCE SHEET

EEE/X

As at 31 December 2013
RZF—=F+="A=+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)
2013 2012
—E—=F —F—=
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
(o3 ARET T ARETIT
Non-current liabilities FRBERS
Loans from government authority BB ER 30 4,148 4,784
Bank borrowings RITEE 29 4,000 -
Deferred income PEIERW A 31 16,644 15,063
Deferred tax liabilities EERIBAE 32 338 61
25,130 19,908
Net assets EEFE 484,740 404,924
EQUITY s
Share capital R 2R 33 56,025 56,025
Reserves #1E 34 428,715 348,899
Total equity AR 484,740 404,924

These financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by

the board of directors on 27 March 2014.

ZHANG HONG

R 5A
Director

EF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

RZERBHRERN _E-NF=A -+ LtREEF

SHUERIRREEM -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

2 A 3L
mEEREEHR
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—F—=F+-_A=+—HItFEZ
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
Statutory
Share Share Exchange surplus Retained
capital premium reserve reserve profits Total
RA& B4 & ME ELfiE ZERSRE REEF EoH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%ETR AR%TR
(Note 33)  (Note 34(a)) (Note 34)  (Note 34(b))
(Wi33)  (Hits4) (Wits4)  (WizF34(p)
Balance at 1 January 2012 W_E——F—F—H
it 56,025 51,098 - 33,242 202,142 342,507
Comprehensive income 2EME
Profit for the year AEF R - - - - 58,754 58,754

Other comprehensive income  Eftt 2 F k& - - - - - _

Total comprehensive income 2 U258 - - - - 58,754 58,754
Transactions with owners RRZRX5
Appropriation to statutory BREEERS
surplus reserve e - - - - - -
Special dividends BRI E - - - - (7,00) (7,008)
At 31 December 2012 N\ZT—ZF
+ZA=1t-"H 56,025 51,098 - 33,242 253,893 394,258

Balance at 1 January 2013 n-E-=%—HA—H

a3 56,025 51,098 - 33,242 253,893 394,258
Comprehensive income 2HEYEH
Profit for the year AEEHRH - - - - 79,274 79,274

Other comprehensive income  Hfb2 &% = - - - - _

Total comprehensive income 2 E Mz 85 - - = = 79,274 79,274
Transactions with owners REZXS
Appropriation to statutory BREATES
surplus reserve tHiE = - - - - _
At 31 December 2013 RZB—-=%
+-RA=+-H 56,025 51,098 - 33,242 333,167 473,532

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial  B&Mf ZfisF B A MR EE Y —3H -
statements.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

= Ay~ — &
mEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2013
HE—T—=F+_A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKEZETR)
2013 2012
—E-=F —E——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{023 AR®ET ARET T
Cash from operating activities RETHEE2HERE
Profit before income tax BAREM 94,609 68,869
Adjustments for: FEIER -
Interest income FBUA 6 (3,396) (3,810)
Yield gain on available-for-sale financial assets AHPERBEERRKE 6 (261) (99)
Reversal of provision of trade receivables EWE ZRFURERE 6 = (2,380)
Reversal of provision of other receivables H e W OB R B [ B 6 (1,629) (990)
Interest expenses FBEH 8 659 296
Written off and provision for obsolete and B LT S R
slow-moving inventories 9 2,699 7,479
(Decrease)/increase in provision for Ve VI HED
impairment loss FARHIE
on trade deposit and prepayment HEEBRE 6,9 (989) 320
Provision for impairment on trade receivables W E FERFRERE 9 678 -
Provision for impairment loss on N EFURERR
loans receivables & 9 2,513 304
Amortisation of intangible assets BB Y 9 4,626 2,859
Written off of property, plant and equipment M -~ BB MR B R 9 - 892
Impairment loss on property, WE - BERRE
plant and equipment AEEE 9 1,457 -
Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments Sl richee 3| 9 453 235
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME  BENERETE 9 8,601 6,443
Gain on disposal of property, HEDE  BEX
plant and equipment REEF 7 (109) (53)
Government subsidy BT A 6 (5,760) (2,014)
Recognition of deferred income BRI A 6 (1,886) (104)
Operating cash flows before working LEECEPRI2LE
capital changes BeRE 102,265 78,247
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,/(Em) 7,077 (12,522)
Increase in trade receivables JEWE 5 B8R ZE 0 (15,653) (2,737)
(Increase)/decrease in other receivables, deposits — E BRI « :T4 K
and prepayments BITHBOEM) R (30,357) 157
Decrease/(increase) in loans receivables FEME R A,/ (42 0) 629 (6,345)
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables FERTE SR,/ (R D) 2,877 (956)
Increase in other payables, deposits received HENZE  BWRET £
and accruals REAERZEM 40,340 11,105
Decrease in other tax payables H ERTIER D (2,769) (3,058)
Cash generated from operations REEBELEZIRE 104,409 63,891
EMEEEREECEERHBRAT

—F—

—FFR
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

42

SPAN \r~i—X
mEHERER
For the year ended 31 December 2013
BE—T—=F+T-_A=1+—HIFFEZ
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARHER)
2013 2012
—E-=F —T——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
{023 ARETR ARET T
Cash flows from operating activities REITHELCHSRE
Cash generated from operations MEHEREL VRS 104,409 63,891
Income tax paid B EH (21,056) (12,702)
Interest paid BRI 8 (659) (296)
Net cash generated from operating activites R EBELRLEE 82,694 50,893
Cash flows from investing activities RELBEEZHERE
Purchase of bearer biological assets BETHAENEE 16 (2,055) (247)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEVE BENEK 17 (2,331) (2,294)
Purchase of construction in progress EEERTR 19 (79,057) (69,305)
Purchase of prepaid land lease payment BEEMTHES - (16,254)
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets BEMHEENKEE 23 (103,200) (8,000)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME jﬁﬁ%&ﬂﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ
plant and equipment 361 140
Proceeds from disposal of construction in progress HEEET2F1SHIA 19 - 68
Proceeds from settlement of available-for-sale HERHEENKEEEMSHA
financial assets 23 73,200 28,000
Interest received BEUFIE 6 3,396 3,810
Yield gain on available-for-sale financial assets A ER KA E R R 6 261 99
Refund of prepaid land deposit U E B £ i fF g 2 124 - 10,000
Net cash used in investing activities REXBFMARESTE (109,425) (53,983)
Cash flows from financing activities MEERELZHERE
Proceeds from government subsidies B #a B TS SR 10,800 7,324
Proceeds from government subsidy for HRREEERN RS
purchase of prepaid land lease payment FisEUE 31 - 15,480
Repayment of loans from government authority 1;LB(W$%F%§\?K 30 (620) (620)
Dividend paid BAK (464) (57)
Special dividend paid EH%EUJ& g = (4,722)
Drawndown of bank borrowings REURITIEE 29 4,000 6,000
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBRTEE 29 (6,000) (1,000)
Net cash generated from financing activities BMEEBELECRETE 7,716 22,405
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ﬁ%&ﬁ%%ﬁ%
cash equivalents mY),/BInEE (19,015) 19,315
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FH{HLRELZEY 89,374 70,059
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRBRERBREEEY 70,359 89,374
Analysis of the balance of cash and REeRBREEENERIN
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances B RBITER 70,359 89,374

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial

statements.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29
December 1995, under the relevant provisions of the Company
Law of the PRC, the Company was re-organised from a
state-owned enterprise to a limited liability company. On 16
August 1996, with the approval of the Economic Restructuring
Commission of Jilin Province, the Company was further
converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999,
the Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of retained
profits in the proportion of one bonus share for every two
existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on the Growth Enterprise
Market (“GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC under the
brand names of Changlong and Shendi. The principal activities
of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

(a) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which includes all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”)
and Interpretation issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong, requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing Rules”).
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Basis of preparation

(c)

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
biological assets and available-for-sale financial assets
measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 3.

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
new and revised Standards, Amendments and
Interpretations (“new and revised HKFRSs”) issued by the
HKICPA that are effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013.

Presentation of Financial Statements
- Presentation of Items of Other
Comprehensive Income

HKAS 1 (Amendments)

HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits

HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements

HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures

HKFRS 1 (Amendments) Government Loans

HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Disclosures - Offsetting Financial Assets and

Financial Liabilities

HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11 and Consolidated Financial Statements, Joint
HKFRS 12 (Amendments) Arrangements and Disclosure of Interest in

Other Entities: Transition Guidance
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2009-2011
Cycle
Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of
a Surface Mine

HKFRSs (Amendments)

HK (IFRIC) - Int 20

Except as described below, the application of the new and
revised HKFRSs in the current year has had no material
effect on the amounts reported in these consolidated
financial statements and/or disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

HKFRSs (Amendments) — Annual Improvements
2009-2011 Cycle

HKAS 1 has been amended to clarify that an opening
balance sheet is required only when a retrospective
application of an accounting policy, a retrospective
restatement or reclassification has a material effect on the
information presented in the opening position. Further, this
opening balance sheet does not have to be accompanied
by comparative information in the related notes. This is
consistent with the Group’s existing accounting policy.

The adoption of this standards have no material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Iltems of
Other Comprehensive Income”

The amendments to HKAS 1 “Presentation of Iltems of
Other Comprehensive Income” (“HKAS 1”) introduce new
terminology for the statement of comprehensive income
and income statement. Under the amendments to HKAS
1, a ‘statement of comprehensive income’ is renamed as
a ‘statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income’. In addition, the amendments to HKAS 1
require additional disclosures to be made in the other
comprehensive income section such that items of other
comprehensive income are grouped into two categories:
(a) items that will not be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss; and (b) items that may be reclassified
subsequently to profit or loss when specific conditions are
met. Income tax on items of other comprehensive income
is required to be allocated on the same basis. The Group
has applied the new terminology to rename ‘statement
of comprehensive income’ as ‘statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income’ and made additional
disclosures in the other comprehensive income section
such that items of other comprehensive income may be
reclassified subsequently to profit or loss is disclosed.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
HKFRS 10 - Consolidated Financial Statements

HKFRS 10 introduces a single control model for
consolidation of all investee entities. An investor has
control when it has power over the investee (whether or
not that power is used in practice), exposure or rights to
variable returns from the investee and the ability to use the
power over the investee to affect those returns. HKFRS 10
contains extensive guidance on the assessment of control.
For example, the standard introduces the concept of
“defacto” control where an investor can control an investee
while holding less than 50% of the investee’s voting rights
in circumstances where its voting interest is of sufficiently
dominant size relative to the size and dispersion of those
of other individual shareholders to give it power over the
investee. Potential voting rights are considered in the
analysis of control only when these are substantive, i.e. the
holder has the practical ability to exercise them.

The standard explicitly requires an assessment of
whether an investor with decision making rights is acting
as principal or agent and also whether other parties
with decision making rights are acting as agents of the
investor. An agent is engaged to act on behalf of and
for the benefit of another party and therefore does not
control the investee when it exercises its decision making
authority. The accounting requirements in HKAS 27 (2008)
on other consolidation related matters are carried forward
unchanged. The Group has changed its accounting policy
in determining whether it has control of an investee and
therefore is required to consolidate that interest.

The adoption of this standard has no material impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other
Entities

HKFRS 12 integrates and makes consistent the
disclosures requirements about interests in subsidiaries,
associates and joint arrangements. It also introduces
new disclosure requirements, including those related to
unconsolidated structured entities. The general objective
of the standard is to enable users of financial statements
to evaluate the nature and risks of a reporting entity’s
interests in other entities and the effects of those interests
on the reporting entity’s financial statements.

As the new standard affects only disclosure, there is no
effect on the Group’s financial position and performance.

HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement

HKFRS 13 provides a single source of guidance on how
to measure fair value when it is required or permitted
by other standards. The standard applies to both
financial and non-financial items measured at fair value
and introduces a fair value measurement hierarchy.
The definitions of the three levels in this measurement
hierarchy are generally consistent with HKFRS 7 “Financial
Instruments: Disclosures”. HKFRS 13 defines fair value as
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date (i.e. an exit price).
The standard removes the requirement to use bid and ask
prices for financial assets and liabilities quoted in an active
market. Rather the price within the bid-ask spread that
is most representative of fair value in the circumstances
should be used. It also contains extensive disclosure
requirements to allow users of the financial statements
to assess the methods and inputs used in measuring fair
values and the effects of fair value measurements on the
financial statements. HKFRS 13 is applied prospectively.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(c)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)
HKFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement (continued)

HKFRS 13 did not materially affect any fair value
measurements of the Group’s assets and liabilities and
therefore has no effect on the Group’s financial position
and performance. The standard requires additional
disclosures about fair value measurements and these
are included in Note 38. Comparative disclosures have
not been presented in accordance with the transitional
provisions of the standard.

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations

The Group has not early applied the following new and
revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective.

HKAS 19 (2011) Amendment  Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions®

HKAS 32 (Amendments) Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities"

Disclosures - Recoverable Amount Disclosures for
Non-Financial Assets!"

Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge
Accounting®

Financial Instruments'*

Investment Entities™

HKAS 36 (Amendments)
HKAS 39 (Amendments)
HKFRS 9

HKFRS 10, HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (Amendments)

HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts®

HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies!"

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010-2012
Cycle®

HKFRSs (Amendments) Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011-2013
Cycle®

m Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July 2014.
@ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016.
@ To be determined.
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B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(d)

(e)

Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(continued)

New standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations (continued)

The Group did not early adopt any of these new or revised
HKASs and HKFRSs, amendments and interpretation to
existing HKASs and HKFRSs. Management is currently
assessing the financial impact of these revisions to the
Group’s financial position and performance.

Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(i) Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Business combination (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised in
accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do
not result in loss of control are accounted for as
equity transactions — that is, as transactions with the
owners in their capacity as owners. The difference
between fair value of any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(e) Subsidiaries (continued)
(iii) Disposal of subsidiaries

(iv)

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This may
mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or
loss.

Investments in subsidiaries

Investments in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less any identified
impairment loss. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivables.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statement
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwill.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Biological assets
Biological assets are living animals and plants managed
by the Group which is involved in the agricultural activities
of the transformation of biological assets for sale or into
agricultural product.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs at initial recognition and at each
balance sheet date. The fair value of these biological
assets is determined based on active market prices in the
local market with reference to comparable age, breed and
genetic merit. The gain or loss arising on initial recognition
and subsequent changes in fair values less estimated
point-of-sale costs of biological assets is recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which it arise. Biological
assets that are in the stage of cultivation or do not have
a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are recognised in the
balance sheet at cost less any impairment losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent
costs are included in the assets carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits associated with
the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance
are charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their costs or revalued amounts to their residual
value over their estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual
values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at the end of each reporting period. The
principal annual rates are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 10 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i)

()

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An assets carrying amount is written down immediately to
its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on the disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Prepaid land lease payments

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases
are initially stated at historical cost and subsequently
recognised on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation,
and is stated at historical cost less any impairment losses.
No depreciation is made on construction in progress until
such time as the relevant property, plants and equipment
are available for use. Cost comprises all construction
expenditure and other direct costs of construction.
Construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when the asset
being constructed becomes available to use.

Intangible assets

(i) Purchased know-how and prescription
Purchased know-how and prescription are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 5 to 12 years from the date of
commercial production. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(k)

Intangible assets (continued)

(ii) Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the financial period in which it is
incurred. Expenditure on development activities is
capitalised if the product or process is technically
and commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to complete
development. The expenditure capitalised includes
the costs of materials, direct labour, and appropriate
proportion of overheads and borrowing costs, where
applicable. Capitalised development costs are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Amortisation begins when
development is completed and the assets is
available for use. Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the financial period in
which it is incurred.

(iii) Purchased in-process research and development
assets acquired through separate purchase
In-process research and development assets
acquired through separate purchase are recognised
as intangible assets at historical cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (ii) above.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value
in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets
are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are
separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

()

(m)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average cost formula. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Financial assets

(i) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following categories: at fair value through profit or
loss, loans and receivables, and available for sale.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are financial assets held for trading. A
financial asset is classified in this category if
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
the short term. Derivatives are also categorised
as held for trading unless they are designated
as hedges. Assets in this category are classified
as current assets if expected to be settled
within 12 months; otherwise, they are classified
as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. They are included in current assets,
except for the amounts that are settled or
expected to be settled more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period. These are
classified as non-current assets. The Group’s
loans and receivables comprise “trade and
other receivables”, “loans receivables” and
“cash and cash equivalents” in the balance
sheet.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial assets (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Classification (continued)

(c) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-
derivatives that are either designated in this
category or not classified in any of the other
categories. They are included in non-current
assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Investments are initially recognised at fair value
plus transaction costs for all financial assets not
carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assets carried at fair value through profit or loss
are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction
costs are expensed in the income statement.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards
of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and
receivables are subsequently carried at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in
the income statement as “gains and losses from
investment securities”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the income statement as part of other income.
Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments
are recognised in the income statement as part
of other income when the Group’s right to receive
payments is established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHBEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

(m) Financial assets (continued) (m) BMBEEE)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (iii) B & E R

Assets carried at amortised cost LA SE K KB AR < B B
The Group assesses at the end of each reporting SERNEREHRIZAEER
period whether there is objective evidence that BB EAE —Hk — AN
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is BEELBRE EEFCEE
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial BEBAREREREERE
assets is impaired and impairment losses are E-—REEREH(EBEESE
incurred only if there is objective evidence of 1) mzR(RZE)EES
impairment as a result of one or more events that S B IR R B & ¥ 5218 3%
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a WP BEEMNRRMGET 2R
“loss event”) and that loss event (or events) has an MBI A G TR 2
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the BN BEES ELHBRRE
financial asset or group of financial assets that can NESEREES -

be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that WEDRABE -2k —HE
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing HALAREACERNE - 2
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency B REEEEFN BXAS - &
in interest or principal payments, the probability BB 0] REAR EE BT A M B S
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial B UAREAIERER M
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate BEREARRRESRELR
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated AETERRL - PR REE
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or BEhol IR B R A R R AT
economic conditions that correlate with defaults. AR

For loans and receivables category, the amount of MEFRREYFIELERmE -
the loss is measured as the difference between the EESHENZEE CREER
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of RUBEERAZERNER
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit IR NEFFEEF AR RBE SR
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at ECHEEB(EIBFELRE
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. EZEEBER)RGE - ZEB
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the EZEmMESERAERDR -
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated MEBELinE WamRER -
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity W—IBERXFEINEARE
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount B A E - ARETEEM
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current WEBBZITEEANAE LA
effective interest rate determined under the contract. TEFZEBEREMNE - ER
As a practical expedient, the Group may measure —HERAEEEIE  FEIHR
impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value AAHEBR s mENTIAZR
using an observable market price. TEREEFERIE -
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(m) Financial assets (continued)
(iii) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment was recognised (such as an improvement
in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.

Impairment testing of trade and other receivables is
described in note 3b.

(iv) Assets classified as available-for-sale

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets is
impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses the
criteria refer to (a) above. In the case of equity
investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on the that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss — is removed from equity
and recognised in the profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement. If, in a
subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the
increase can be objectively related to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed
through the consolidated income statement.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(n) Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated and entity balance sheet,
bank overdrafts are shown within “bank borrowings” in
current liabilities.

(0) Current and deferred income tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. The deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (or laws) that
have been enacted or substantially enacted by the balance
sheet date and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(0)

(P)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income taxes assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring
costs and legal claims are recognised when: the Group
has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events; it is probable that an outflow of resource
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions
comprised lease termination penalties and employee
termination payments. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. a provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due
to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(q) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates (the “functional currency”).
The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation
where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised
in the income statement, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying
net investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the income statement within “finance
income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in the income statement
within “other gains and/(losses)”. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available for sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the carrying
amount of the security. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised
in profit or loss, and other changes in carrying
amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(q) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Transactions and balances (continued)
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets,
such as equities classified as available for sale, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each income
statement are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are
translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(r)

(s)

Government grants

Grants from the PRC government are recognised at their
fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with the
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the income statement over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to prepaid land lease payment
and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to the statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a
straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the
related assets.

Employee benefits

(i) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual
leave as a result of services rendered by employees
up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(ii) Pension obligations

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees in Hong Kong. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ relevant
income and are expensed in the income statement
as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

2.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(s)

(t)

Employee benefits (continued)

(ii) Pension obligations (continued)
In addition, pursuant to the government regulations
in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group is required to contribute an amount to certain
retirement benefit schemes based on the wages for
the year of those employees in the PRC. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume the
retirement benefits obligations of those employees of
the Group. Contributions to these retirement benefits
schemes are charged to the statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as incurred.

The employee’s of the Group’s which operates in the
PRC are required to participate in the state-managed
retirement scheme operated by the local municipal
government. Contributions are made based on
a certain percentage of the payroll costs and are
charged to the statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the state-managed
retirement scheme.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EASHBEME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

(u) Related parties (u BEEAL
A party is considered to be related to the Group if: — B AR REAREEBRE - i
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that (8 RATHEAEREE

person’s family and that person

()  has control or joint control over the Group; () TR EEIE RIS
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or iy HAEEEERTE 5
(i) is a member of the key management personnel iy AEAEEHAE YN
of the Group or of a parent of the Group; ANEEEEEKE
or B4
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following b) BALRERE BFETNIME
conditions applies: (OECSEaE
(i)  the entity and the Group are members of the () ZEEEAEEEBER-—
same group; SEMKE QT
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the i)y —HEBRS—HEE
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow B E NTFlIRE B E

—

‘}ij—F'ﬁE RSN
IR Y= PN AR EN )

subsidiary of the other entity);

B g)
(i the entity and the Group are joint ventures of (i) ZEEEAEEASR—
the same third party; F=MEERE
(iv) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for vy ZERBAANSEENER
the benefit of employees of either the Group or SEEBEENETENE
an entity related to the Group; BRMNBINBERERE
FEtEl
(v)  the entity controlled or jointly controlled by a v) ZEBEZ@A )E%Z)\:t
person identified in (a); and 2l o FLRIE I
(v) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant vy @INEBRZIATHZE
influence over the entity or is a member of the BEEATENLBZ
key management personnel of the entity (or of a TR (% uZ RO RSN
parent of the entity). AMFZEERENXE -
Close members of the family of a person are those family HZATHEEZINNRENERZE
members who may be expected to influence, or be MR EEETR SR - FHEHA
influence by, that person in their dealings with the entity. HEEFEZALTXZZATEEN
KEKE °

EHEBARI(CREROERAT 65
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

(x)

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services
in the ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue
is shown net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and
discounts and after eliminating sales with the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of
revenue can be reliably measured, it is probable that future
economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met for each of the Group’s activities
as described below. The Group bases its estimates on
historical results, taking into consideration the type of
customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each
arrangement.

(i) Sales of goods
Sales revenue is recognised when the merchandise
is delivered and title has been passed to the
customers.

(ii) Interest income
Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Accounts payable are classified
as current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if
longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive directors that makes strategic
decisions.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2013

2.

BEAETHBERBE (&)

(v)

(w)

(x)

LN
WABRASERAEEBBREDH®
HEEm MR M E Wk R E
BWRFE - IRWRACHRIEE
BoRE BEMEFTMEREHEE
El i

AEBNRWAZREEATSETE R
BRRAEELENERARNSE
BENA THRARBZREBH
B IRIFRRERUA - NEERB
EXBFLGER  LEEEFPRE
B RXPEEREARINAL -

() HEHm@
WEmE FRERMAREE
BEFE  HERATIAER -

(i) FEYKA
FISMARAER M EEZR
FHEERR -

FEAS 58 52 RR AR % B fth B 1 SR IE
ENESRARAEEL B REE
BREPAHEEEEERRERR
BELOIFEML - MREHER
B BE—FR—FURAZ (RE
RNEBEFEERANEERNE
M) BSEARBAR - BA - &
23 RIFERBAME -

DERE
REDBZEBHTAEMTEZE
REERBEZAMBEER—K -
TBEERREARIREREY
HREDRRER RO WHRRIE
HERENERRZMITES -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(y) Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of assets (other than trade and other
receivables)
The Group tests annually whether assets have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(k). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-
in-use calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires
the Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to
arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate present value, which has been
prepared on the basis of management’s assumptions and
estimates.

(b) Impairment of trade and other receivables

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables
is made based on assessment of the recoverability of
trade receivables and other receivables. The identification
of doubtful debts requires management judgement and
estimates. Where the actual outcome or expectation
in future is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the carrying value of trade
receivables and other receivables and doubtful debt
expenses/written back in the period in which the estimate
has been changed.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(c) Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets
The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation or amortisation charges for
its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the
actual useful lives of property, plant and equipment and
purchase know-how and prescription of similar nature
and functions. It could change significantly as a result of
technical innovations and competitor actions in response
to severe industry cycles. Management will increase the
depreciation or amortisation charge where useful lives are
less than previously estimated lives, or it will write-off or
write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets
that have been abandoned or sold.

(d) Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC.
Significant judgement is required in determining the
provision for income tax. There are many transactions
and calculations for which the ultimate tax determination
is uncertain. The Company recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether
additional taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome
of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period
in which such determination is made.

4. TURNOVER

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of biochemical medicines. Revenue represents the
invoiced value of merchandise sold less allowances for returns,
discounts, value-added tax and other sales related taxes.
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2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
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Sales of medicine s ) G =

457,746 353,247
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B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision-makers (“CODM”), for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on type of goods delivered.

The executive directors have identified that, the Group has only
one reportable operating segment, which is the manufacture
and distribution of biochemical medicines in the PRC. Since this
is the only reportable operating segment of the Group, no further
operating segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

In addition, the Group’s revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities and capital expenditures are predominantly attributable
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no
analysis by geographical regions is presented.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012 contributed over 10% of the total
operating revenue of the Group.

SERANTES  BXIBLRERRA 3
BRODELFZDBEREAMERZINRE
B DiRE BB AR EEERDT
HE -

WITEZCRNAEEES — @ 2HE
BoEb - MaxME— D EBARTBEREMD
HAEEEY - At ARENKLEDE
RE—REDE -

& E R

BEoh - AEBMRA - HX - EE - BE
MEBENRERFAZBRNE DK EE—H
B A - At WESRIBE D -

EHFEEFZEH
HE_ZET—=K-_FT——F+_H4
—t+—RHIEFE WEKRARTPF 2SN
AEEBEBWZBHE10% o

OTHER INCOME Hag A
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat AR¥ET T AREFTT
Recovery of bad debts previously g B B #5552 BR
written off 351 221
Bank interest income RITH EWA 497 393
Government subsidies (Note) BT aL (I aE) 5,760 2,014
Recognition of deferred income TERIE WA 31 1,886 104
Interest income on loans receivables  JEU & 3k 2 U0 A 2,899 3,417
Yield gain on available-for-sale AEHEM B EE
financial assets o] 3R e 2= 261 99
Reversal of provision of trade FEUE 5 BR SR (B 3]
receivables 24 - 2,380
Reversal of provision of other LAt Y SRR A B 4
receivables 25 1,629 990
Reversal of provision of deposit and =] % % T8+ 5185 {8 [B] #
prepayment 25 989 -
Others Hi 496 306
14,768 9,924

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group received
subsidies from various local municipal government bodies in the PRC,
which aimed at the general financing of the business and technology
development of the Group.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

7. OTHER GAINS 7. Hb=
2013 2012
—E—= —F——F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Htat AR¥ET T ARETTT
Gain on disposal of property, LEME BEX&
plant and equipment FEET 17 109 53
109 53
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BERZA
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARETTT
Interest expenses on loans from BT H#EER 27 B
government authority &M 179 214
Interest expenses on short-term mIER - RHRITEEZFE
bank borrowings, unsecured 360 82
Interest expenses on long-term EIEA RAFREE
bank borrowings, wholly repayable RAEIRITEEZFE
within five years, unsecured 120 -
659 296

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZETR)
9. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. BANER
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——4F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaF ARBT T AREET T
Profit before income tax for the year is IR B B v )
arrived at after charging/(crediting):— Bk (GFA)
TH&EE : —
Cost of inventories sold (excluding BEHEFERA(TE
additional provision for, and write off of RIS DNBE S I B
obsolete and slow-moving inventories) BEENEEEE 77,933 58,780
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving FEE LR HFERE
inventories 22 2,699 103
Write off of obsolete and slow-moving MIHEE RS EES
inventories 22 - 7,376
Impairment loss on loans receivables BWER 2 RERBE 26 2,513 304
Impairment loss on trade receivables BUWE SR ZRE
B8 24 678 -
Impairment loss on deposit A RIBHNFREZ
and prepayment BB 25 = 320
Impairment loss on property, Y - BB R RE
plant and equipment BB R 17 1,457 -
Auditor’s remuneration:— ZEEME - —
Provision for the year FAEE 268 265
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBERE - (43)
Amortisation of intangible assets E AN
(included in cost of sales) (FIASHERKA) 21 4,626 2,859
Research and development cost HEEsH 3,685 1,070
Amortisation of prepaid land lease TEfT b T S B SH
payments (included in cost of sales) (FIASHERA) 18 453 235
Depreciation of property, plant WE - R MR
and equipment e 17 8,601 6,443
Employee benefits expenses BITRHMNER
(excluding directors’ and supervisors’ (TEEEER
remuneration): EEME)
Salaries and allowances e KRR 14 122,234 90,242
Pension scheme contributions RIKS T BIHER 15 1,120 1,048
Gain on disposal of property, HEDE BEK
plant and equipment HAEAF 7 (109) (53)
Write off of property, plant and equipment 51 « HE &
& - 892
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAARKZETR)
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. IS8R H
(@) Income tax represents: (a) FrERiEsE
2013 2012
—E—= —F——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR¥ET T
PRC enterprise income tax RS
- Current year —REFEE 15,058 10,538
Deferred taxation (Note 32) IRERLIA (KT7£32) 277 (423)
15,335 10,115

The PRC enterprise income tax is provided according to
the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress
approved the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, which
became effective from 1 January 2008. In accordance with
the new tax law, an unified enterprise income tax rate of
25% is applied to both domestic-invested enterprises and
foreign- invested enterprises.

On 12 March 2012, the Company was accredited as
a “National New and High-tech Enterprise” by the Jilin
Provincial Science and Technology Bureau (& ##& &
EH1i7EE) and is entitled to a reduced PRC Enterprise
Income tax rate of 15% for the three consecutive years
commenced since year 2012.

(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and (b)
accounting profit at applicable tax rate:

TREEEMBRIDRETEARE
REERBE -

R-ZBZLF=A+XB  2EHA
REBLETERERMAEHRL - @
—EENE-A-HBER - RIE
WL FTAERENINEDEILSR
— K% MBS

AARN-—_E——FE=A+-RA%
EMERERTEEABERS G
¥ o ARAR T —_FEE
ZFEARBREPECEMSHES
15% 5N TIE ©

BEYHESHTENRBERARR
HERIE -

2013 2012
—Eg—= —EF——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBETT

Profit before income tax TAE A 94,609 68,869
National tax calculated at PRC BRI EMEHE15%

enterprise income tax rate of 15% (ZE——F :15%)

(2012: 15%) ETE AR 14,191 10,330
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 7~ A 1% 5 5z K9 T 7% o 2 867 208
Deferred tax on temporary differences B FELRFEEE 2

in prior year IEFERIE 277 (423)
Income tax expense FriS sz 15,335 10,115
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B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

11.

12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2013 is based on the profit attributable to
owners of the Group for the year of RMB79,274,000 (2012:
RMB58,754,000) and 560,250,000 shares in issue during the
year (2012: 560,250,000 shares).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the years
ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF
THE COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2013 includes a profit of RMB79,816,000 (2012:
RMB58,856,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (Note 34).

DIVIDENDS

No final dividend has been proposed or paid by the Company in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2013 (2012: Nil).

11.

12.

13.

BREF
HE-_ZT—=F+=-A=+—HLHF
B SREXRBFTDBREFANEEE
BAEERFARET9,274,000 (==
—— 4 : AR¥58,754,0007T) RERD
17 B 17 560,250,000 % ( = F — — 4 :
560,250,0000% )5t & -

HREE T —=FRk_T—=-F+=A
T+ HIMEFETEBEEHE S LR
f&% - W E 25 R A o

RATER ABMEET

BE-_Z—=F+-_A=+—HItEE
W RAREEE ABEERBIEERA
R#79,816,0007c (—Z——4F : AR
58,856,0007T) * &% & Al B R A AF 2 B
HEmEP IR (M13E34) o

RE
RAARTTREXRRNHEE-_T—=F
+-A=t—BUEEZFaRERE (=
T——F:8\) o

2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBTFIT
Special dividend: Nil (2012: AR « (2T —=F
HK$0.0138 per ordinary share) & @AR1.3878 1) - 7,003
- 7,003

On 14 August 2012, the Board declared the payment of a
special dividend equivalent to approximately RMB1.25 cents
per ordinary share totalling approximately RMB7,003,000.
The declared special dividend is calculated based on the
total number of shares in issue as at 17 October 2012. The
payment of the declared special dividend was approved by the
shareholders at the Company’s Extraordinary General Meeting.

The aggregate amounts of the dividends declared during 2012
have been disclosed in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income in accordance with the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

RZE—ZF)\A+MNA ESESMHIK
NENREESERNEREBRARE
1.25% + #HE# AR®7,008,0007T © E
KSR B RN —E——F+A++
AEBITRODBHEGE - REFRIREZ
BERENARTIRFEEI RS LERE
JE o

TE-_HFERNBRELERCREETER
AlEPINGEAREE R EMEIKRERD T

==

% °

TG B REA(CEERNBERAR
—EB-=FFER
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHRAEMS
REMUNERATION

(a) Directors’ remuneration (@ E=M2
Details of remuneration paid to the Directors of the REBERBEE-_ZT—=+=A
Company, for the year ended 31 December 2013 and the =+ -RALFERRBE=ZT—=
year ended 31 December 2012 and disclosed pursuant to F+ZA=+—HLEFE  mMAR
the GEM Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Hong Kong ASESYN S RIEAIER £
Companies Ordinance, are as follows:— MREIREE D AIEH E1611EH

BoOEFEBWT

2013 —E-=F
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
Directors’ benefits Discretionary fund 2013 Total
fees  EHd - 2 bonus contributons —B—=£

Eshe REMNE RfERL  BAEHX Lk
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR AR®TR ARETR ARETR

(Note (i)
(HiE)
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Zhang Hong (Chairman) Rk (EE) - 86 1,189 7 1,282
Zhang Xiao Guang SR - 66 539 7 612
Zhao Bao Gang HEM - 65 332 - 397
Tian Xin Guo el - 68 327 - 395
Chen Qi Ming BR BT AR - 65 346 - 411
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 65 339 6 410
Independent Non-Executive BV #77E% -
Directors:
Shen Yu Xiang MEH - 62 145 - 207
Yan Li Jin BiEs - - - - -
Xue Chang Qing BERE - - 25 - 25
- 477 3,242 20 3,739
Notes: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the BteE () BISEAmFHNEE KRS
Remuneration Committee and is approved by the board of R WHESE2ELRE
directors, having determined with reference to the Group’s Egas  MARBRA
operating results, individual performance and comparable AL MISEIBREERE ©
market statistics.
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B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’

remuneration (continued)

14. EERERITBRAEHE (F)
(a) EBHS (M)

2012 ===
Salaries,
allowances
and other Pension
Directors’ benefits Discretionary fund 2012 Total
fees  #Fr& o 28L bonus contributions —Z— 1
EEHe  REMFE BBIEL  BRARSHR Bie
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETRT ARETT
(Note (i)
(Btzza)
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Zhang Hong (Chairman) 3&5A(%/E) - 73 - 11 84
Zhang Xiao Guang REEN - 57 102 10 169
Zhao Bao Gang HER - 57 132 9 198
Tian Xin Guo A #7 - 59 270 9 338
Chen Qi Ming R B AR - 57 101 9 167
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 57 97 9 163
Independent Non- BUHNTES -
Executive Directors:
Shen Yu Xiang LEH - 53 132 - 185
Yan Li Jin e - - 25 - 25
Xue Chang Qing BERE - - 12 - 12
- 4183 871 57 1,341
Notes: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the BtaE - () BIEEAmFHNEEeHRS

(i

Remuneration Committee and is approved by the board of
directors, having determined with reference to the Group’s
operating results, individual performance and comparable
market statistics.

There were no arrangements under which a director waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments, and no incentive
payment or compensation for loss of office was paid
or payable to any director during the years ended 31
December 2013 and 2012.

(i

B YMEZE2ELE
B s AARERA
BLBMISBIRRET -

HE-T—=FR=-FT—=
FH+ZA=+—HLFE -
MEFEESHERREN
BEEMME 228 - IEE
MAEMZESR 2R kE
HEfRISEE sk B -

EMEEEREECERBRO AR AR

—E-=FFR
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAEMNE (E)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Senior executives’ remuneration (b) ERITHRAEME
Details of remuneration paid to the Supervisors of the AEERARRSEEINZME
Company which were all below HK$1,000,000 (equivalent K 1,000,000 T (RBEZF
to RMB786,000 for the year ended 31 December 2013 —=ft-A=t—HLFERE
and RMB811,000 for the year ended 31 December 2012) RARKT86,000T KRBEZT
are as follows:— ——F+ZA=+—HBLFERE
PARKES11,0007T) » HFBMT
2013 —E-=F
Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits Discretionary Pension fund 2013 Total
23 =11 bonus contributions Z—E—=#
REM A= Mg  BARSHER “BMe

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®MTRT ARBTR AR%TR

(Note ()
(Hra20)
Supervisors: .
Zhang Jing Zhou w=M 16 22 - 38
Li Bao Hai TEF 42 15 5 62
Wu Wei Men RFEE 42 18 5 65
100 55 10 165
Notes: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Mtat () BISEAmFHNEE KRS
Remuneration Committee and is approved by the board of EE WHESEEL2ELRE
directors, having determined with reference to the Group’s B g RE - BARBERA
operating results, individual performance and comparable BHEHBEEIBEETE -

market statistics.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSRITHAEME(E)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Senior executives’ remuneration (continued) (b) BERITRASHE ()
2012 —B——F
Salaries,
allowances
and other
benefits Discretionary Pension fund 2012 Total
e - EE bonus contributions —ZT——
N EMF = BISIEAL  BRIKESHER BN E

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000
AREBETIT ARETT ARBTT ARBTE

(Note (i)
(HraEa)
Supervisors: E2E
Zhang Jing Zhou sk =M 15 75 - 90
Li Bao Hai =BG 37 - 9 46
Wu Wei Men RFER 36 - 9 45
88 75 18 181
Notes: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the BtaE : () BIEEAmEHNEE KRS
Remuneration Committee and is approved by the board of BE WTHESEEL2ELRE
directors, having determined with reference to the Group’s SRS MARBRA
operating results, individual performance and comparable B BMISEIBEEEE
market statistics.

(i) There were no arrangements under which a Supervisor (i) BE-ZT—=FfR=-F—Z=F
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments, and no +ZA=+—HBLEFE  BE
incentive payment or compensation for loss of office was AREFEHERRBREEM
paid or payable to any supervisor during the years ended 31 &z 8 - I (A B
December 2013 and 2012. BB SR o] 228

sl fHfE -
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)

()

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals during the year included
five Directors (2012: five Directors) whose remuneration is
set out in (a) above.

The emoluments of the individuals fell within the following
bands:

14. EERSRITHRAEME (F)

(c)

TEREFMAL
FASEREHMALBESRES
(ZE——F:5R%ER)ZEMNBE
FHER EX(@#T -

ZEATOMEBROARIINT

Number of individuals

AE
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000, 1,500,001 7T — 2,000,000 1 -
equivalent to RMB1,179,000 — BT HERARE
RMB1,572,000 (2012: equivalent to 1,179,000 — AR EE
RMB1,217,000 — RMB1,622,000) 1,572,000 (=& — =4 :
HERARE,217,0007T —
AR#1,622,0007T)
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000, 1,000,001/ 7t — 1,500,000 - -
equivalent to RMB786,000 — BT HERARE
RMB1,179,000 (2012: equivalent to 786,0007T — AR
RMB811,000 - RMB1,217,000) 1,179,0007T( =& — =4 :
BE R ARES11,0007T —
AR#1,217,0007T)
Below HK$1,000,001, equivalent to 1K 71,000,0017& 7T * 4 5

RMB786,000 (2012: equivalent to
RMB811,000)

1HE N ARK786,0007T
—TFHER

AE#811,0007T)

Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in
(a) above, the emoluments of supervisors and other
senior management whose profiles are included in the
Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
section of this report were below HK$1,000,000,
equivalent to RMB786,000 (2012: equivalent to
RMB811,000) for the year ended 31 December 2013 and
for the year ended 31 December 2012.

During the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these highest paid
employees as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.
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B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

15.

16.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

Employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC government,
or in the case of the employees in Hong Kong, a defined
contribution Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (“MPF scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the MPF scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group is required to contribute a certain
percentage of its payroll to the retirement benefits schemes to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect
to the retirement benefits schemes is to make the required
contributions under the schemes. The employer’s contributions
vest fully once they are made. At 31 December 2013 and
2012, no forfeited contributions were available to reduce the
contributions payable in future years.

The Group’s contribution to retirement benefits schemes for the
year ended 31 December 2013 amounted to RMB1,150,000
(2012: RMB1,048,000).

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS

Bearer biological assets comprise:

15.

16.

RIREFIGTE
AEEEEATERNEEMNBERERR
KEFFEINKE - MESEERARE
BRI AES T ENEMIE TR Fl1E A
BeREHKTE([BESFE ) MK
8- aEerimEERAEENEET
R—EABYLEENESHOHEE - NEE
BERASHIEMNETES L EHZERIKE
FIFTEME A B BIZIERA - NEERZ
RIKEFEFEING M —FETREZTE
EHIEE MR - B EMEFEL 41
REEBFAE KRB =ZFK=-ZT——F
+ZA=+—8  WEITHSRWHRA
FRVEBIRR 2R F fE R R -

REE-ZT—=F+-"A=+—HIEF
B RNEEMZAARNERARENTSIERE
AR®1,150,000L(ZZF—=F : ARK
1,048,0007T) °

TRELEVEE
TRBENEERR

The Group and the Company

AEBRAEDQT
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T AR¥ETF T
Ginseng, at cost A2 K AE 4,372 2,317
Vineyard, at cost BE - mAAE 518 533
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HZEAEE 4,890 2,850
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS (continued) 16. TREBEVMEE(E)
Reconciliation of carrying amounts of bearer biological assets: T BEYMEERTDAEYE

The Group and the Company

AEBRAQT
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Ginseng A
Carrying amount at 1 January R—HA—BZEAEE 2,317 2,070
Additions during the year FARE 2,055 247
Carrying amount at 31 December RT+ZA=+—HZEAEE 4,372 2,317
Vineyard 75
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—BZEAE 533 545
Additions during the year FARE = -
Harvested grapes transferred to inventories B @A EEEFE (15) (12)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—RHZEAE 518 533
4,890 2,850
The carrying amounts of ginseng and vineyard were valued AZREERREBERVIBKAGTE © %
at their original costs. These assets are in their early stage of SEERNEEREBTA - B0 mER
cultivation and preparation and active market prices are not T - B4 BEERAEVIEK AT BEE
available. In addition, the Directors are of the view that the RZERERZ XTEEE °

original costs would approximate their fair values at this stage of
their development.
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B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. V¥ BMERRE

Furniture,
fixtures and
Plant and Transportation equipment
Buildings ~ machinery  equipment  {FE  £E Total
BF BEREE ERRE &L @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT AREFT
The Group and the FEERAAT
Company
Cost: PR -
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F—HF—H 73,481 63,665 2,889 2,063 142,098
Transfer from construction #EEEEZTE
in progress (Note 19) (K7:#19) 22,625 7,237 - - 29,862
Additions BN - 635 967 692 2,294
Disposals HE - (140) - - (140)
Reclassification BN E (1,254) 1,159 - 95 -
Written off EE (684) (7,613) - (4) (8,301)
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=1—H 94,168 64,943 3,856 2,846 165,813
Additions R - 1,892 376 63 2,331
Disposals HE - (432) (82) - (514)
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-A=+—H 94,168 66,403 4,150 2,909 167,630
Accumulated depreciation:  Z:HFTE :
At 1 January 2012 RZZE——F—HF—H 14,785 41,266 1,719 1,600 59,370
Charge for year (Note 9) SR 8 (/#719) 2,503 3,498 248 194 6,443
Reclassification b (329) 301 - 22 -
Written off R (173) (7,232) - (4) (7,409)
Written back on disposals &[] - (53) - - (53)
At 31 December 2012 R-E——F+-A=+—H 16,792 37,780 1,967 1,812 58,351
Charge for the year (Note 9) F R 8 (47:79) 2,907 4,983 386 325 8,601
Written back on disposals & &gl - (180) (82) - (262)
Impairment (Note 9) REHH9) 1,409 48 - - 1,457
At 31 December 2013 R_E—=F+-A=1+—H 21,108 42,631 2,271 2,137 68,147
Carrying amount: REE:
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+-A=1—H 73,060 23,772 1,879 772 99,483
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+-A=+—H 77,376 27,163 1,889 1,034 107,462

EMEEEREECERBRO AR AR
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

18. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

18. At LHiESE

The Group and
the Company

AEER
¥ NN
RMB’000
ARET T
Cost: BXAS
At 1 January 2012 R-_ZE——F—H—H 3,531
Additions NE 16,254
At 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 N-E——F+=-A=1+—HK
—E—=%+ZHA=1+—H 19,785
Accumulated amortisation: KTy
At 1 January 2012 R_E——_F—H—H 1,308
Charge for the year (Note 9) FRZH(HEE9) 235
At 31 December 2012 R-ZTB——F+-_F=+—8H 1,543
Charge for the year (Note 9) FRNZHE (M) 453
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=-—A=+—8H 1,996
Carrying amount: BREE
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H 17,789
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F+=-A=+—8H 18,242
2013 2012
—E—=F —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARET T
Carrying amount at 31 December RTZA=+—RHEmE 17,789 18,242
Portion classified as current assets DEEREEE D (454) (453)
Portion classified as non-current assets DEEIERDEE 2D 17,335 17,789

The above medium-term land use rights are located in the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group received
no government grants (2012: RMB15,480,000) in relation
to purchase of certain land leases of the Group. The Group
recognised the amount as the carrying amount of the relevant
assets and will transfer this to profit or loss over the useful lives
of the land leases.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

WA ErRE i RS R E -

HE-_Z—=F+-A=+—HBLHF
B AEBYERBREEBEES T i
MEZBRNFE(ZE——F: ARK
15,480,0007T) - AEEEERZ L EA
WHREEZERE IR BAEZA
AFfPREREERS -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 19. EEIRE

The Group and the Company

AEERADT

2013 2012

—E—= —E——F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMETF T ARETTT

At 1 January w—A—H 66,777 32,712

Additions R 79,057 69,305
Transfer to property, plant and equipment BB EYEE « BE LG

(Note 17) (Hiat17) - (29,862)

Disposals & = (68)

Government subsidies B EL = (5,310)

At 31 December R+=—A=+—~” 145,834 66,777

REBEE-_ZT—=F+_A=+—HLEE
HE AEETEEBESBBREEL Y
RE{EAAEEF -—EaSREEEXR
EEERBENRE(ZT—Z24F: ARK
5,310,0007T) » BT HHALE RERTIIZZ
FRRAR AN H0BR ©

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no subsidies were
received (2012: RMB5,310,000) from the Huinan County
Finance Bureau to finance the Group’s development of
production facilities for an advanced technology project. The
government subsidy had been deducted from the related cost of
construction in progress.

20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. AMIBARIMNKRE
The Company
b NN

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Unlisted investment, at cost FELETRE - ENAE 25,500 25,500
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI PNGIE e 24,660 24,660

EMEEEREECERBRO AR AR
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RTE R AMIRE (&)

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2013 were as RZZE—=F+=ZA=+—80  WEAA
follows:— BT —
Country of incorporation Percentage of
and operation and ordinary shares Principal
Name of companies legal entity status held directly activity
MR HERE
BREVERR EBRAN
NCIEZE EEBEEM Bolk ETEEK
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong The PRC, limited liability company 100% Trading of
Pharmacy Trading Company biochemical
Limited medicine
EMEBEREEZRSHEREE PR BREEAR BEEH I ER
NS
Jilin Province Medicinal Plants The PRC, limited liability company 100% Dormant
Trading Company Limited ST 8
EMEMTERAEMEEERAT FE - BREAQF
EMEREEEHESRAT The PRC, limited liability company 100% Dormant
e BEREEAR] TmEE)
The amounts due to subsidiaries classified as current liabilities in ENMERARRBERBALARAEEAE
the Company’s balance sheet are unsecured, interest-free and K2 nBEE AEERE . 2BEREEX
repayable on demand. B -
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B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(AARKZETR)
21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. EREE
The Group and the Company REERAKAT
Purchased
in-process
Purchased research and
know-how and development
prescription assets
BB A B i )2 BEETY Total
E- 0 WREE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFIT ARBFIT ARBEFIT
Cost: R
At 1 January 2012 R-ZE——F—H—H 60,885 11,100 71,985
Transfer B 5,300 (5,300) -
At 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF
+=-—A=+—H 66,185 5,800 71,985
Transfer EERE 5,800 (5,800) -
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=F
+-—A=+—H 71,985 - 71,985

Accumulated amortisation and Z iR EEEE !
impairment loss:

At 1 January 2012 NZE——F—A—H 52,671 600 53,271
Transfer [ 600 (600) -
Amortisation charge (Note 9) B (B aE9) 2,859 - 2,859
At 31 December 2012 RZE—ZF

+=-—A=+—H 56,130 - 56,130
Amortisation charge (Note 9) BGH S (K7729) 4,626 - 4,626
At 31 December 2013 MIE—=4%F

+—-—A=+—H 60,756 - 60,756
Carrying amount: BRMEIE :
At 31 December 2013 RZE—=4F

+=-—A=+—H 11,229 - 11,229
At 31 December 2012 RZE——F

+=-—A=+—H 10,055 5,800 15,855
Purchased know-how and prescription were acquired through BARMRES SEBLE =7 A EHE
research and development cooperation with independent third FMAZHRSEA -

parties and were all acquired in cash.
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B RS AR BTEE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(KARHBZT)

21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

The Group and the Company (continued)

During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount of
the purchased know-how and prescription based on the future
economic benefits generated from these assets. No impairment
loss was recognised for the current year (2012: Nil).

Purchased in-process research and development assets
represent costs incurred by third parties for the development
of new products, including cost of clinical experiments and
tests conducted. Due to the inherent uncertainties associated
with these purchased in-process research and development
projects, the associated expenditure incurred is particularly at
risk of impairment if the successful eventual commercialisation
of the projects becomes doubtful. The Directors have reviewed
the carrying amount of these purchased in-process research
and development assets and consider that there are no
indications of impairment as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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22. INVENTORIES

22. FE

The Group and the Company

AEERAEQTH
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Raw materials R 8,411 10,529
Work in progress &M 14,886 15,642
Finished goods BURK fh 6,942 11,130
30,239 37,301

Less: Provision for obsolete and B BERBHETERE

slow-moving inventories (4,658) (1,959)
25,581 35,342

During the year ended 31 December 2013, provision
on obsolete and slow-moving inventories amounted to
RMB2,699,000 was made (2012: RMB103,000).

HE - Z—=F+-"F=+—BIt&E
B e AR % 2,699,000 7 BE FE K 4 84
GeERE(ZZE—=—F : AR¥ 103,000
JL) °

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no obsolete and
slow-moving inventories were written off (2012: RMB7,376,000).

BE-_T—=#+-_A=+—HIEE
WiEmEHEE R HETENME( T ——
F: AR¥7,376,0007T) °

During the year ended 31 December 2013, no obsolete and
slow-moving inventories which the provision were already made
in prior years, were written off (2012: RMB4,124,000).

HE-_T—=F+-A=1+—HIFE"
WEFERUMFEELNBENEEZER
EHETEERME(ZE——F : AR
4,124,0007T) °

23. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 23. AItHENKEE
The Group and the Company
AEERAQTH

2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREET T

Unlisted financial instruments, at cost JELFTEBIA KA E
At 1 January n—HA—H - 20,000
Additions rig 103,200 8,000
Settlements e (73,200) (28,000)
At 31 December N+—A=+—8H 30,000 -

EMEEEREECERBRO AR AR
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23.

24.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

(continued)

As at 31 December 2013, the above unlisted financial
instruments represented the Group’s subscriptions of
30,000,000 units with RMB30,000,000 redeemable investment
products linked to highly liquid assets such as bonds and
deposits (2012: Nil). These assets were measured at cost less
impairment at the end of the reporting period as the directors
were of the opinion that the fair value could not be measured
reliably due to wide range of unlisted structural products. Details
of fair value estimation of unlisted financial instruments during
the year are set out in Note 38(f) to the financial statements.

The directors consider that there were no impairment provisions
on available-for-sale financial assets and the carrying values
approximate the fair values as at 31 December 2013 and 2012.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the unlisted financial instruments.

23. AIRHEMBEE (R)

NZT—=F+-"A=+—H - kit
T B 7 T A 5 28 & [# P 3R 88 #9.30,000,000
BHA HARE30,000,0007T 2 5 7 B 1E
BENESRFRAEBHEA A EDENE
m(ZTE—ZF : &) - HRWREHRZH
BRIBEBRNKARGTE - AZEESREZ
EEMERUEESR  WEERAEATFE
THREEMFE - FRFELTHHITANA
FEGFT B SR M IS IRE MI5E38(f) ©

FERAE RNIE—=FRKR_T—_F
T A=+—H AHEEMKEETE
REREARREEENTERS -

RIEBH  FEEONSAEERRRIE
B TANKREE -

TRADE RECEIVABLES 24, EWWE ZIRX
The Group The Company
AEE RAFE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B=F —ET-——-—F —B—-=%F —ZT——%F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETT AR®TRT ARETT
Trade receivables TEWE FEER 129,834 114,181 147,737 127,067
Less: Provision for impairment T RE R (8,650) (7,972) (5,204) (5,204)
Trade receivables — net eI E 5 BR
—FE 121,184 106,209 142,533 121,863

()  The Group’s policy is to allow an average credit period of
180 days to its trade customers.
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(AARKZETR)
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24, EWWE SR (E)
(i) The movements in the provision for impairment for i) FARFRRERENEZZH(BERFTE
doubtful debts during the year, including both specific and RERERIY)WNT

collective loss components, are as follows:

The Group The Company
REH RAF
2013 2012 2013 2012
—B-—=F T =B-=F —T--F

RMB’000 RMB'000 = RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARBTRE ARETT ARBTRE ARETT

At 1 January R—HA—H 7,972 10,352 5,204 7,690

Additional provision (Note 9) B (A 5£9) 678 - - -

Reversal (Note 6) E# (Kfi6) - (2,380) - (2,486)
At 31 December wnt+—_A=+—H 8,650 7,972 5,204 5,204

Provision for doubtful debts had been made for the REREIREEEM 2GR
estimated irrecoverable amounts arising from the sale of WEILZEEY - EFEC2XEZ68F 1
goods. The provision was determined by the directors with RIEHETEBRESTE -

reference to past default experience.

(i) The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the (i) WEBZEHRAKRERE S ERX
invoice date and net of provision for impairment of trade EREE  EURESEROERERD
receivables, is as follows: Hran T

The Group The Company
TEE N
2013 2012 2013 2012

—E—=F T ZB-Z=F —T—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 = RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARKTT ARETRT ARETT

Current BNEA 38,299 34,303 38,839 37,956
31-90 days 31-90H 39,767 24,978 43,216 29,634
91-180 days 91-180H 22,023 20,640 29,058 25,627
More than 180 days HBiB180H 21,095 26,288 31,420 28,646

121,184 106,209 142,533 121,863

ERAREREELEEROERAT 89
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24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 24, EWWE SR (E)
(iv) The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither (v) 3 A% {E 5l 3k &= B8 4R 1B R (E 1Y FE L &
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as SEFRESTHOT
follows:
The Group The Company
rEH AKATE
2013 2012 2013 2012
—=E—= —E——4F ZEBE-=F —T——F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRT ARETT ARBTRT AR®ETT
Neither past due nor impaired 3 {8 HA SR (E 100,089 79,921 111,113 93,217
Less than 1 month past due #BEALDR—@EA 5,233 5,666 12,358 11,193
1 to 3 months past due wE—E = {E A 4,706 6,940 7,499 6,638
Over 3 months past due BEABB=EA 4,430 6,142 7,858 6,136
114,458 98,669 138,828 117,184
Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired e AR ER R E SRR
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there was no BEWETPIFREZEFAEH -
recent history of default.
Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired BHEEBRENERE SHEREHRES
relate to a number of independent customers that have ZEUEPER  ZEEPHASE
a good track record with the Group. Based on past EMEECHRT - BEATL
experience, management believes that no impairment is B ERERE  ZSEKOER
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not B RERGEEHRITERERY
been a significant change in credit quality and the balances g - BESRDEARIER 2 EUE -
are still considered fully recoverable. The Group does not REBWERZFERFEERD -
hold any collateral over these balances.
(v) Included in trade receivables of the Company was a v) AREEKRESIERABRER-Z

balance of RMB40,959,000 (2012: RMB33,456,000) due
from a subsidiary as at 31 December 2013.

The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade
receivables approximates their fair value.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

—ZF+_A=+—HEKHER
B2 #E R AR 40,959,000 (=&
— 4 : AR¥33,456,0007T) °

EERA BURESERAZIKEE
EENTERE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARHBZT)

25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25. HfttfEiFIE - sl RFENRE

PREPAYMENTS
The Group The Company
rEH RKAE

2013 2012 2013 2012
—F-=Ff —T--4 ZB-=f —T--fF
RMB’000 RMB’000 = RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT AREBTRT AR®ETTT
Deposits and prepayments, net &< MFEB(TFIA » F 58 1,749 1,815 1,749 1,815
Advances to staff, net EIEREE = 2,254 6,584 2,254 6,584
Other receivables, net HubfEUG I - F5E 10,610 779 10,610 779
Bills receivables e I8 72,571 45,031 67,778 42,283
87,184 54,209 82,391 51,461

During the year, reversal of provision for impairment on deposits
and prepayments amounted to RMB989,000 was made (2012:
Provision for impairment amounted to RMB320,000).

At 31 December 2013 and 2012, certain of the Group’s and
the Company’s advances to staff and other receivables were
determined to be impaired. The impaired receivables related
to staff and debtors that were in financial difficulties and
management assessed that only a portion of the receivables
is expected to be recovered. Consequently, the following
provisions for doubtful debts have been made.

FR - HITERBNRIEHARE
989,000 2 BERE(ZF—=4F : fEH
BB B E A R #320,0007T) °

RZE—=FR_FE—Z-F+ZHA="1—
A AEERARARREIEAMNHE TR
BREMEBRFBEREEADRE - 25
EVRER B FIEAEER T BN #N S
TITAMEFAEHR  SBETERBIHDE
WRIBTEHA AT | » (L B B RERVE L A
TR -

The Group and The Group and
the Company the Company
Advanced to staff Other receivables
AEBRAAT REBERAERQT
B EIER ot fE W K18

2013 2012 2013 2012
—E—= —T——-F =ZB—= —ET—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARKTT AR®BTRT ARETET
Gross amounts 1% 6,811 11,311 10,941 2,569
Less: Provision for impairment g : JsE & & (4,557) (4,727) (331) (1,790)
Net amounts FEE 2,254 6,584 10,610 779

TG B REA(CEERNBERAR
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25. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 25. HftfEWW1E - S € RFANKE

PREPAYMENTS (continued) (&)

The Group and the Company do not hold any collateral over the ANER B R AR R B M U A R R
above balances. The movement in the provisions for impairment BEHRE o FAME TR K E M EREIE
of advances to staff and other receivables during the year, RERBENEES(BIEFEREEEHEEI
including both specific and collective loss components, is as DV ¢

follows:

The Group and the Company

AEERAEQT
2013 2012
=gF—= —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARBETT

At 1 January w—A—H 6,517 7,507
Reversal (Note 6) 1% (ffa6) (1,629) (990)
At 31 December Rt+—A=+—H 4,888 6,517
26. LOANS RECEIVABLES 26. EWER
The Group and the Company
AEERAEDF
2013 2012
—E—= —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARETT

Loans receivables due within 1 year R—FREEZERER 40,000 40,000
Interest receivable eI B 1,957 2,586
Less: Provision for impairment R TR (B 1 (5,367) (2,854)
Loans receivables due within 1 year —net R—ERIN P2 EKER-F5E 36,590 39,732
()  Loans of aggregate sum of RMB30,000,000 (2012: () BRBILIE=FMNEREBARYE
RMB30,000,000) due from independent third parties 30,000,0007C(=ZE——%F : AR
are unsecured, bears interest between 6.31%-10% per 30,000,0007T ) 7 AR - 2 F R X
annum (2012: 6.31%-10% per annum) and, following their NF6.31E10EFFB(ZE—ZF -
renewal, will be repaid within the next twelve months. FHE6.31E10E) REHREAENK

X+—EAREER -

(i) Loans of aggregate sum of RMB10,000,000 (2012: (ih ERBIF=ZFANEFRBRBARE
RMB10,000,000) due from an independent third party 10,000,000t (= —=F : AR
is unsecured, interest free (2012: Nil) and, following its #10,000,0007T) A EEA - £ 85
renewal, will be repaid within the next twelve months. (ZE—ZF : &) REHEBEARK

KA ARER -
92 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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26. LOANS RECEIVABLES (continued)

(i)  The ageing analysis of loans receivables that are neither
individually or collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:

26. EWWER (&)

(i) AR B K AR BE AR AE IR B A B E

KAREE D ATENT -

The Group and the Company

AEERAEADT
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBTT
Neither past due nor impaired 3 f 8 BR SR B 35,000 21,732
Less than 1 year past due BHE DR —F 816 15,000
35,816 36,732

(iv)  The movements in the specific provision for impairment for

doubtful debts during the year are as follows:

(v FEREERERERENED D

T

The Group and the Company

AEERAEAQTH
2013 2012
—E—=f —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEFIT
At 1 January m—H—H 2,854 2,550
Provision for impairment (Note 9) BERE (K E9) 2,513 304
At 31 December “n+—-—A=+—H 5,367 2,854

(v)  The Directors consider the carrying amount of loans

receivables approximates their fair value.

V) EERLS BURERZEEESRH

RNERE -

EMEEEREECERBRO AR AR
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27.

28.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group and
the Company and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less. The directors consider the
carrying amount of these assets approximates their fair value.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group’s and the Company’s
cash and bank balances denominated in RMB amounted to
RMB70,359,000 and RMB62,251,000 respectively (2012:
RMB89,374,000 and RMB84,572,000 respectively). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice
date, is as follows:

27.

28.

RERBEEEY
ReRBTEBBEAEERARRARE
ReRREMEA=EARUTZEHE
IR - EERK LWSAEZRAMER
HRAPERE -

RZE—=F+=ZA=+—H £&H
MARABIUAREFEZER S RIRTHE
#5 Bl A& AR 70,359,000 7T Ml A K #
62,251,000 (ZE—=F : 93| A A
R 89,374,000 7T 1 A R % 84,572,000
L) e ARBTREEREBARMEE - A
i AREREAREZINEBTIRRTE - I8
EEMTESTERTE  AEERESEE
RIEBETINEEB 2 RITBAREERA
Hh e o

PEAY B 5 BR X
P ARENERE A BHOENE BER0E

BT -

The Group and the Company

AEEREQT
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——4F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETIT
Current BNER 3,015 2,971
31-90 days 31-90H 1,797 679
Over 90 days im0 H 6,018 4,303
10,830 7,953

The average credit period from the Group’s and the Company’s
trade creditors is 90 to 180 days.

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for
trade purchases. The directors consider the carrying amount of
trade payables approximates their fair value.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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29. BANK BORROWINGS 29. SRITEE
The Group and the Company
AEERAEAQTH
2013 2012
—=2—= —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured RERITEE - |IER - 6,000
Long-term bank borrowings, REIRITEE RAFRER -
wholly repayable within five years, IR
unsecured 4,000 -
4,000 6,000
Less: Amounts due within one year B AARBAaEET
included under current liabilities BR—FANEERE = (6,000)
Non-current portion IEMENEB (9 4,000 -
Note: Htat -
(@  The Group’s and the Company’s bank borrowings are repayable as follows: (@) AREE R AR BERTTREN T 5 MR EE
The Group and the Company
ARBMRAAT
2013 2012
—E-=fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR AR
Within one year —FR = 6,000
After one year but within two years R—FZERMEAN = -
After two years but within five years RREEEBEREFA 4,000 -
4,000 6,000

EMEEEREECERBRO AR AR
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. /,— =
29. BANK BORROWINGS (continued) 29. RITEE (&)
Note: (continued) Kz - (&)
(b) The effective interest rates of bank borrowings at the end of the reporting (b) RI|BEARRITEEERFIRMNT -
period are as follows:
The Group and the Company
AEERAEAT
2013 2012
—E-=F —ET-—F
Short-term bank borrowings, unsecured RERITRE - EER 6.43% per annum
= FF|*=6.43E
Long-term bank borrowings, wholly repayable RERITEE  RAFAER - 3.0% per annum
within five years, unsecured fi:g sl FEF|E3,0E -
(c) As at 31 December 2013, the carrying amount of long-term bank (c) RZZE—=F+=-A=+—H "  ARBBEHF
borrowings approximate its fair value, as the impact of discounting is not AKX RESFTEENREABEREEATEE
significant. A
As at 31 December 2012, the carrying amount of short-term bank RZE—ZF+ZA=+—8  RBERNY
borrowings approximate their fair values, as the impact of the discounting is BAK HHRTEENREAEREQATEE
not significant. &
=
30. LOANS FROM GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY 30. BUFHKBEER

Loans were obtained from Huinan County Finance Bureau
for the purpose of research and development activities of the
Company. The loans are unsecured and bear interest at one
year term saving interest rate promulgated by The People’s
Bank of China plus 0.3% per annum. The loans are repayable by
instalments until July 2022 as follows:

EEZMBER L EREARQRMHEE
oA  ZEERAEER  BEPEAR
IRITHEME — FHREEF EINO.3ERF
FETE - ZEERERTINARARZE
T ZF+EARIDEER

The Group and the Company

FEERAEQT
2013 2012
—E—=fF —F——
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARETT

Within one year —FRN 682 666
After one year but within two years R—FEBEMRFA 635 636
After two years but within five years KWMFEZRERTA 1,907 1,906
After five years REAFE 1,606 2,242
4,830 5,450
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31. DEFERRED INCOME 31. IEZEYWA

The Group and the Company

AEERARQT
2013 2012
—E—= —EF——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
At 1 January w—HA—H 15,376 -
Arising from government grants RE BB 5,040 15,480
Credited to profit or loss (Note 6) RIE NI R (M i26) (1,886) (104)
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 18,530 15,376
Carrying amount at 31 December Nt -—A=+—HEAE 18,530 15,376
Portion classified as current liabilities ARSI AESD (1,886) (313)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities 98 &23E7 B & &) 16,644 15,063

During the year ended 2013, the Group and the Company
received government grants of approximately RMB5,040,000
from Jilin Province Finance Bureau and Huinan County Finance
Bureau in relation to support further research and development
of the Group’s and the Company’s intangible assets.

During the year ended 2012, the Group and the Company
received government grants of approximately RMB15,480,000
from Huinan County Finance Bureau in relation to purchase of
certain land leases situated at the Economic Development Zone

in Huinan, Jilin Province, the PRC.

REBRAQNGTR -_T—ZFRESHFMN
B HBANEEGEY R RH I FAERE K
RRARMEREEEE—SHEZ BT
B AR #5,040,0007T °

REERARTR-_E—_FRNESER
S HPHEEGRBMNAREEHMNE IR
KEBRER 2 ETHHEE 2 BT A
R #¥15,480,0007T °

TG B REA(CEERNBERAR
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32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 32. EEBIBER
The movements during the year in the deferred tax liabilities are FRBELEHIEAENZHIT
as follows:
The Group and the Company
AEBRAEAQT
2013 2012
—E—= —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R ARBTIT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 61 484
Charged to profit or loss (Note 10(a)) RiE&= AT (M5 10(a)) 277 -
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10(a)) PRIBZE IR E (MiE10(a) - (423)
At 31 December RT-A=+—H 338 61
The deferred tax liabilities recognised at the balance sheet date REFEBRRZELETIBEEERA IR
represented deferred tax arising from accelerated depreciation WEE S ZIELERIE ©
allowances.
33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. &
2013 2012
—E—=fF —T——F
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
e <8 RE 8
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETT
Domestic shares of RMB0.10 each &R EE A FR#0.107T
HINE & 387,750,000 38,775 387,750,000 38,775
H shares of RMBO0.10 each BRREEBEARE010T
HIHR% 172,500,000 17,250 172,500,000 17,250
560,250,000 56,250 560,250,000 56,025
98 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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34. RESERVES 34. f#E
The Group KEE
Exchange Reserve EZ#E
The Group’s exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange REEE N FEREIINEER 2 B wE
differences arising from the translation of the financial RMBEEZAIINEZR - ZHEDR
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in B E2Q&ET  AEE S BERIE o
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy set out in Note
2(a).
The Company KA E]
Statutory
Share surplus Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BRRE ZEERGBREE REHEF wat
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETTT AREFT ARETTT
(Note a) (Note b)
(Hiita) (Hiztb)
At 1 January 2012 RZE——F
—H—H 51,098 33,242 212,706 297,046
Profit for the year INEZ % F - - 58,856 58,856
Appropriation to statutory B EEF
surplus reserve BB - - - -
Special dividends BRI B - - (7,003) (7,003)
At 31 December 2012 MNZE——F
+-—A=+—H 51,098 33,242 264,559 348,899
Profit for the year REEHF - - 79,816 79,816
Appropriation to statutory N EIATE
surplus reserve BERHE - - - -
At 31 December 2013 R —=%F
+—-—A=+—H 51,098 33,242 344,375 428,715

EHEBARIACREROERAT 99
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34. RESERVES (continued)
The Company (continued)
(a) Share premium
The Company’s share premium account represents the
premium arising from shares issued at a price in excess of
their par value per share.

34. f#iE (&)

AT ()
(a) Ki7iEE

RRB B 5 B A BB SR (E
ZEREBETZBRMEEZGE -

(b) Statutory surplus reserve (b) ZEEZEGFEE
In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and BREFBERARERAQNGQAAE
the Company’s articles of association, the Company and [E /N B e ) /NS B S
its PRC subsidiaries will appropriate 10 percent of their FAFEFEAMEBER - ABED10%
annual statutory net profit (after offsetting any prior years’ MFEEAELENEEZERBREHRBP
losses) to the statutory surplus reserve account. When A BZBHRHENEREZSER
the balance of such reserve reaches 50 percent of these AR AR 2 50%, N AR A BITRER
entities’ share capital, any further appropriation is optional. BHE—PBETIE - AEBHBERE
The statutory surplus reserve can be utilised to offset AIRERMTFENEERBITA
prior years’ losses or to issue bonus shares. However, f& o A - AIRBITRIETERBF
such statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at BAESEDERFIRIRAR25% °
a minimum of 25 percent of share capital after such
issuance.
35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. BEAREAIE
At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Company had REER @ AEBRAQNRBEETLERE
capital commitments contracted for but not provided for as BB EAREYENT © —
follows:—
The Group and the Company
AEERAQTH
2013 2012
—E—=fF —E——F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBEFIT
Acquisition of intangible assets WiEp EE 2,940 2,940
Acquisition of construction in progress BAEREIRE - 9,330
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment BAME - BENMERE 1,140 -
4,080 12,270

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Related party transactions concerned with numbers of key
management during the year comprised only remuneration
paid to the Executive Directors, and is set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.
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37. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 37. EXEmER

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by
pricing products and services commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings
and the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes judgements to the capital structure in light
of changes in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure using a gearing ratio, which is total debts divided
by adjusted capital. Total debts represent total borrowings.
Adjusted capital includes all components of shareholders’ equity
less unrealized reserves.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group may
issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The gearing ratio at 31 December 2013 and 2012 was 1.9% and
2.9% respectively, calculated as follows:

BEXEE
AEEEREAZ T EARRREAEHE
Al R AR 2 RO BE I T B 48 ER R B 7k P 4R
HEZEmMEREEEBARESSEKRAR
BRE  EERKRREEDR -

7 S T G 2 R AR RIS B R AR 6T
BB A AP BS (8 Bk F R A
BB AHRIR B 0 47 L T ARBE S R TR
ERBEAALBYRNBRRERSED
B R B (A AR
I B

AEEPED) - AEE U E L E R
R AR B - EMERS 8 IR AT
BREL - EHOBHESOT - @B
AN 0 T PR SR M 20 AR BB -

RERKBEEERBILE  AEEAEE
BT ARRBEEAN - (FHHFOE
BREIHEEENRDALE

RIE—Z=ZFN_ET——F+_A=+—
AZEEBRBLEEDRA1.9%K%2.9% -
AHTEMT

2013 2012
—_E—= —E—_F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARTIT

Total debts (v
- Bank borrowings —IRITEE 4,000 6,000
- Loans from government authority — BT E R 4,830 5,450
8,830 11,450
Shareholders’ equity R 473,532 394,258
Gearing ratio EEBEE 1.9% 2.9%

TG REE (L EERNBERAR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk management

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk,
price risk and fair values risk. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments either for hedging or for trading
purposes. These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices as described below to
minimise potential effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and
bank balances, trade and other receivables and loans
receivables. The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to its trade, other and loans receivables. The Group
allows an average credit period of 180 days to its trade
customers. The amounts presented in the balance sheets
are net of allowance for doubtful receivables. An allowance
for impairment is made where there is an identified loss
event which, based on previous experience, is evidence of
a reduction in the recoverability of the cash flows.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk
exposure to any single trade counterparty or any Group
of trade counterparties having similar characteristics. It
has policies in place to ensure that sales are made to
customers with an appropriate credit history.

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
loans receivables and cash and bank balances included
in the consolidated balance sheet represents the Group’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the Group’s
financial assets.

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including
the short term investment of cash surpluses and the
raising of loans to cover expected cash demands, subject
to approval by the Company’s board of directors when
the borrowings exceed certain predetermined levels of
authority. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its
liquidity requirements and its compliance with lending
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves
of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group and the Company can be required to pay.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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38. MZERERE

Bt 7 R By B 2

AEENEHEEAREZBUBER -
BEEERR RBERAR - FIXE
@ BEEK - EREREAFERR
AEBEY EBRERBITITESR T EIEY
HREERR o XA - ZERER S
AEENPBEERREBERMAEE
NEEREHAKERBRRANBEELE

(a) EFERRE
AEBTEUKEEARE MIE
ITHBUNEWRE SER - HafE
WHREARERER - AEEZE
ERBTEREEEKRE SRR
HEh U TE AR EWE R » ANE
BREEBSEFPREHCFEHIEER
B180H - EEREBEXRAMIIN G
BB EURIERRE® - AR
PHRMEEEGHMBEAEESRA
B REKEMETENEE B
EELIRERE -

AR ER B AT A R BRI FE —
F—HESRHHFABRENEE
[2\ B o RS 2 6l E R R AR 7] A
BREERETENTPIELHEE -

FEYWE Z AR - H A EURIR - &
WER RERBITEBNEEE
ERERAMINERERSAEE
REAEENPBEEEAENRSE
EmkE -

(b) mEELEE
AEEETENECEERARTES
BRNREERE  BEEMRERS
BHREBSHREFURNERRSF
K- HEERERETRELAETE
BRKFERAEARNAESTEH
e AEHENBRAEHERRR
BESFRLRENABERS
MAREEGSEHRSHEE  UE
NEEHEEHRSESHL -

TERBIAEEPBABENGEE

W T AR BFFS  IIRIERT
MARTRAZRE (BERBESOHN
KRMBFHMNE - EREE
B AR BN E)ARAREE R
ARARIAIBEZAN K& F B HFHE -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

38. MIsEprEE (&)

Financial risk management (continued) B ERERE(E)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FEELERE)
The Group EE
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1 yearbut 2 years but
Carrying undiscounted or on less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HEERE) —FRG —E#ZE MERE
BEE REnLH REX MER EER LE#
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE AR¥TR AR¥TE AR¥TR AR¥Tr AR¥T:R
2013 —E-=§
Trade payables EREZER 10,830 10,830 10,830 - - -
Other payables HA e 508 123,929 123,929 123,929 - - -
Income tax payable  JE{Fr{SH: 3,935 3,935 3,935 = = =
Other tax payables  E eI FiE 8,326 8,326 8,326 = = =
Dividend payable  EfTAZE 1,873 1,873 1,873 = = -
Bank borrowings  $RITHEE 4,000 4,360 120 120 4,120 -
Loans from BT E R
government
authority 4,830 5,581 859 787 2,222 1,713
157,723 158,834 149,872 907 6,342 1,713

EMEEEREECERBRO AR AR

—E-=FFR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

38. MEsE P EE (&)

Financial risk management (continued) B RERERE (&)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FEELERE)
The Group (continued) REE(E)
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
THIRIE —FRK —FBE MERE
FEE Rengw RER A TER ity
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT AR%®TT AR%®Tn AR®TT AR%Tn AR®TRT
2012 —E-—F
Trade payables BT E SR 7,953 7,953 7,953 - - -
Other payables HitENE 83,589 83,589 83,589 - - -
Income tax payable  FERFT15H: 9,933 9,933 9,933 - - -
Other tax payables ~ E 778 11,095 11,095 11,095 - - -
Dividend payable  FEfTHE 2 2,337 2,337 2,337 - - -
Bank borrowings ~ $R{TEE 6,000 6,351 6,351 - - -
Loans from BHBER
government
authority 5,450 6,399 866 811 2,292 2,430
126,357 127,657 122,124 811 2,292 2,430
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

The Company

Total
contractual

38. M5 fe EIE ()
B EMEE (F)
(b) FEEZEE ()

AATF

Within ~ More than ~ More than
1year 1yearbut 2 yearsbut

Carrying undiscounted oron less than lessthan ~ More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
HESER 82! —ERH —F%E MERE
REE BREREE REX MER IFR LFE#
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRL AR¥TR ARBTR AR¥TR AR%TR AR%T=R
2013 —8-=F
Trade payables BB SR 10,830 10,830 10,830 - - -
Other payables Hio TR 122,471 122,471 122,471 = - =
Amounts due to EfTHIB A A
subsidiaries FAE] 24,660 24,660 24,660 - - -
Income tax payable FERFTGH: 3,935 3,935 3,935 - - -
Other tax payables ~ E b fE 718 7,864 7,864 7,864 - - -
Dividend payable ~ FEfHAL2 1,873 1,873 1,873 - - -
Bank borrowings  $R{7fEE 4,000 4,360 120 120 4,120 =
Loans from B #EER
government
authority 4,830 5,581 859 787 2,222 1,713
180,463 181,574 172,612 907 6,342 1,713
EMEERREACEEROBRAA

—E-=FFR
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

38. MEsE P EE (&)

Financial risk management (continued) B REMERE ()
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) FEELERE)
The Company (continued) ARATE)(4E)
Total Within More than More than
contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years
Bk —FAN —Fi&E MEEE
FEE Renes REF A TER ity
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARBFT AR®Tn ARETT AR%®Tn ARETRT
2012 —E-CF
Trade payables BB SR 7,953 7,953 7,958 - - -
Other payables HA e TR 82,684 82,684 82,684 - - -
Amounts due to JERIHTB AR
subsidiaries FA 24,660 24,660 24,660 - - -
Income tax payable  FERFT57: 9,933 9,933 9,933 - - -
Other tax payables ~ H{t ENHi1E 10,278 10,278 10,278 - - -
Dividend payable &A% S 2,337 2,337 2,337 - - -
Bank borrowings  #R{TEE 6,000 6,351 6,351 - - -
Loans from BT KEER
government
authority 5,450 6,399 866 811 2,292 2,430
149,295 150,595 145,062 811 2,292 2,430

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. Bi#EMSEIE (&)

Financial risk management (continued)

(c) Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its
borrowings from the bank and the Huinan County Finance
Bureau. Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group
to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate
profile as monitored by management is set out below:

MERREE(E)
(c) FIFmEEE

AREBBFRERERRERTR
BREVBENEER - RFBHH X
EENERSAEERHRSRE
MEER  XEEGEENAEE
MEFREFIT

The Group and the Company

AKEBRAQT
2013 2012
—_Zg—= —E-—F

Effective Effective

interest rate interest rate

BERA=E BERRFE
% RMB’000 % RMB’000
ARET T ARET T

Variable rate borrowings 25 EE
Loans from government /iR & X

authority 3.28% 4,830 3.53% 5,450
Bank borrowings RITEE 3% 4,000 6.43% 6,000

The interest rate and terms of repayment of the Group’s
and the Company’s borrowings are disclosed in Note 29
and 30 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2013, it was estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease or
increase the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits by RMB75,000 (2012: RMB97,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for the borrowings in
existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase or
decrease represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet date.

REBERARRBHEEF R KIER
B B TS SRR M 752930 55 -

RZTB—=%+-A=+—-H &
BREMEHTE  WEBAE LA
NP 1001EES, @ [HEtig B A%
B B 18 05 A AR BB o R R A 8803
ARB75000T(—Z——F : AR
#97,0007T) °

FREBE ST ERFIEE R G
HEAMEE  BRHARZAN
EEFERBREEE - EHH TR
100EREAERBHBRE T~
EAIEBRFE TR A R
BT -

TG REE (L EERNBERAR
—EB-=FFER
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)
(d) Currency risk

The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most of
the transactions settled in Renminbi and did not have
significant exposure to risk resulting from changes in
foreign currency exchange rates.

(e) Price risk
The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk or
commodity price risk.

(f) Fair value measurement

The following table presents the carrying value of
financial instruments measured at fair value at the
end of the reporting period across the three levels of
the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of inputs used in the

38. MIEEMREE(/E)
MERREE(E)
(d) E¥Ep

AEBEZRPEELLER - K8
DRGUANREHEE
BEXEPMELNERRR -

(e) EBHEEE

AEEBEDETAREERRR

REmERER

(0 AFEHE

TREJIRZRPRLZBEBHBR
FEHNFEIBRAFEFEMAER
FEHERGE ZESFRHRFE
FFESMTAZRAEE - XFER
EMEDZERTIBRMOTHER
MAREABEZEREE LR

E2MET

B EE SN

valuation techniques as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: fair values measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

° Level 2 valuations: fair values measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

° Level 3 valuations: fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2013

F1RMEE - ENAF1RBA
S (BN (B B G RRT5
FHRAEERABZRECK
RRE)FELFE-

FE2MIEME - MR E2R I AK
QIR SEEE RS CORIR =y
ABE - BYTNFBREEARA
BERBABB)HERTE-
PRI B ABUR BT I5BUE
PRS2 B ABIE

LIRMEE : FREETAE
R BB ERYE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B R AR T EE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. Bf#EREE (&)
Financial risk management (continued) B RERERE ()
(f)  Fair value measurement (continued) (N AFEFTE(E)
The following table presents the Group’s and the TREINASERA ’A*ET n= =
Company’s assets that are measured at fair value at 31 _:%"ﬁ':ﬁ =+ BERAFERT
December 2013. EMAE -
Fair Value Measurement
Carrying AFEFE
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BREE F14R E28 3R F
RMB’0000  RMB’000  RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT R AR¥TR AR¥TR AR® TR AR®¥Tx
Assets BE
Available-for-sale e
financial assets M EE 30,000 - - 30,000 30,000
Total assets BEBE 30,000 - - 30,000 30,000
The following table presents the Group’s and the TREIWAEERARFTRZE
Company’s assets that are measured at fair value at 31 ——ZF+Z A=+ —HERAFER
December 2012. EMNEE °
Fair Value Measurement
Carrying NFEFE
amount Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Tota
FREE FAGR Fo8 FE3H “agt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTIT ARBTE AREBTRT ARE®TT AR®TT
Assets BE
Available-for-sale AIHEE
financial assets BT & E - - - - -
Total assets BERE - - - - -

TG REE (L EERNBERAR
—EB-=FFER
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(f) Fair value measurement (continued)
The fair value of financial assets traded in active markets is
based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date.
A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily
and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker,
industry group, pricing service, or regulatory agency,
and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring
market transactions on an arm’s length basis. The quoted
market price used for financial assets held by the Group is
the current bid price. These financial assets are included in
level 1.

The fair value of financial assets that are not traded in an
active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined by using valuation techniques. These valuation
technigues maximise the use of observable market data
where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the financial assets is
included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial assets
include:

° Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar
instruments.

° The fair value of interest rate swaps is calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves.

° The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined using forward exchange rates at
the balance sheet date, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

° Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial assets.

The following table presents the changes in level 3 financial
assets for the year ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. Bi#EMREE (&)

Financial risk management (continued) B ERERE(E)
(f)  Fair value measurement (continued) () AR FEFEE)
2013 2012
—EB—=fF —E——4F
RMB’000 RMB’000
Unlisted structured financial products FEEMEBEYE®R AR#ET T ARET T
Opening balance FAEER - 20,000
Additions i 103,200 8,000
Settlements o (73,461) (28,099)
Gains recognised in profit or loss PIERMEZRIRE 261 99
Closing balance FREH 30,000 -
Total gains for the year FAM LR
including in profit or loss for BT AmE
assets held at the end of the BIRFEAED
reporting period EEMNER 261 99

39. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 39. i EERUMBEBEZRERE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY THHME
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and AEBR-_Z—=FR-_FT——F+=A
financial liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2013 and 2012 —t+—HERNTEEEATEAER
may be categorised as follows: BREE A HE T 3CATil T LA 5 48
2013 2012
—E—= —EB——F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBETT

Financial assets MBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets A ETSEE 30,000 -
Loans and receivables (including cash B R EWGRIR

and bank balances) (B3R & RIRTTHER) 315,317 289,524
Financial liabilities g 3=
Financial liabilities measured WS B ETIRE KA E

at amortised cost 176,253 141,733

40. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  40. ZF#t & H*x

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue EFgR T NE=A-TLRASEHA
by the Board of Directors on 27 March 2014. BT H L FIBHE -

EMABEEREECEERMAERAR 11
—EB-=FFER
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the

AEERFECTIBRERZV BT RE 2 BERE

Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published BB FEE 2 %£4E - EERBEREHINOT °
audited financial statements is set out below.
Operating Results REEE
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=1+—-RALEE
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—Z2-=F —T-—F —2——f —Z2-ZF —ETNE
AMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL
Turnover %%%ﬁ 457,746 363,247 274,294 200,630 152,766
Cost of sales HERR (84,689) (63,593) (44,207) (42,658) (39,352)
Gross profit EF 373,057 289,654 230,087 157,972 113,414
Other income and net gains Hi A R a3k
or losses BEFR 14,877 9,977 6,171 6,101 7,059
Distrioution and selling costs AEREERY (255,319) (203,658) (148,464) (94,306) (77,684)
Administrative expenses 1TER X (37,347) (26,808) (25,937) (26,307) (20,518)
Profit from operations el 95,268 69,165 61,857 43,460 22,271
Finance costs BEKA (659) (296) (253) (178) (273)
Profit before income tax T ArE A 94,609 68,869 61,604 43,282 21,998
Income tax (expense)/credit FrgR (A%)
JSBR (15,335) (10,115) (10,711) (7,391) 78
Profit for the year attributable to ~ ERKDFEEA
owners of the Company JEE R R 79,274 58,754 50,893 35,891 22,076
Assets and Liabilities EEREE
As at 31 December
W+=A=+-H
2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
—E-=% -2 -2 ZT-TF —ZTNE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET R AREFIL AREFL AREFL AREFTL
Bearer biological assets TRBENEE 4,890 2,850 2,615 2,504 2,169
Property, plant and equipment mE - BEREE 99,483 107,462 82,728 55,330 60,554
Prepared lease payments BRLES 17,335 17,789 2,008 2,223 2,348
Construction in progress ELI& 145,834 66,777 32,712 28,959 26,399
Intangible assets mIEE 11,229 15,855 18,714 24,135 33,350
Deposit for acquisition of land use Hﬁ(%ti‘@@'ﬁ%&?
rights - - 10,000 10,000 10,000
Non-current other receivables, E eI e
deposits and prepayments HES S0 AIE = - 2,100 5,100 -
Current assets REBE 371,352 325,319 306,850 251,421 200,973
Current liabilities EEE & (151,461) (121,886) (109,407) (81,048) (71,322)
Non-current liabilities ERBaE (25,130) (19,908) (5,903) (7,010) (8,489)
Net assets BEFE 473,532 394,258 342,507 291,614 255,982
Share capital REN 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025
Reserves e 417,507 338,233 286,482 235,589 199,957
Total equity e Ty ] 473,532 394,258 342,507 291,614 255,982
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